


The design of this year’s cover highlights the ordination of Bishop Barry Jones 
on 4 October 2006 in the Cathedral of the Blessed Sacrament. 

The photo captures Susan Pugh, Bridgette and Rosalyn Kilpatrick 
congratulating Bishop Barry on his ordination. 

25 14For it is as if a man, going on a journey, summoned his slaves and 
entrusted his property to them; 15to one he gave five talents, to another two, 

to another one, to each according to his ability. Then he went away. 16The one who 
had received the five talents went off at once and traded with them, and made five 
more talents. 17In the same way, the one who had the two talents made two more 
talents. 18But the one who had received the one talent went off and dug a hole in 
the ground and hid his master’s money. 
19After a long time the master of those slaves came and settled accounts with them. 
20Then the one who had received the five talents came forward, bringing five more 
talents, saying, “Master, you handed over to me five talents; see, I have made five 
more talents.” 21His master said to him, “Well done, good and trustworthy slave; 
you have been trustworthy in a few things, I will put you in charge of many things; 
enter into the joy of your master.” 22And the one with the two talents also came 
forward, saying, “Master, you handed over to me two talents; see, I have made two 
more talents.” 23His master said to him, “Well done, good and trustworthy slave; 
you have been trustworthy in a few things, I will put you in charge of many things; 
enter into the joy of your master.” 24Then the one who had received the one talent 
also came forward, saying, “Master, I knew that you were a harsh man, reaping 
where you did not sow, and gathering where you did not scatter seed; 25so I was 
afraid, and I went and hid your talent in the ground. Here you have what is yours.” 
26But his master replied, “You wicked and lazy slave! You knew, did you, that I reap 
where I did not sow, and gather where I did not scatter? 27Then you ought to have 
invested my money with the bankers, and on my return I would have received what 
was my own with interest. 28So take the talent from him, and give it to the one with 
the ten talents. 29For to all those who have, more will be given, and they will have 
an abundance; but from those who have nothing, even what they have will be 
taken away. 30As for this worthless slave, throw him into the outer darkness, where 
there will be weeping and gnashing of teeth.” 

The intention behind quoting, in full, 
Matthew 25 : 14-30 

is to illustrate the various lessons we can take from it: 
among other things accountability (the purpose of this report) 

and that fine balance: 
it’s not so much about what we have 

it’s more about what we do with it that counts. 
We trust that this report achieves that purpose. 

Parable of the Talents 



The design and printing of this Annual Report is largely 
attributable to Catherine Waller of Cathedral House 
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The Roman Catholic Bishop of the Diocese of Christchurch is a corporation sole established in civil law 
under the statutory authority of the Roman Catholic Bishops Empowering Act 1997. 

Section 5 of the 1997 Act provides: 

“The Bishop of a diocese is a corporation sole, with perpetual succession and a seal of office, 
and has and may exercise all the rights, powers and privileges, and may incur all liabilities, 

of a natural person of full age and capacity.” 

The Code of Canon Law, the law of the Church, is understandably more specific as to role, authority and 
power of the Bishop. The Code of Canon Law provides: 

At Canon 375 § 1: “By divine institution, Bishops succeed the Apostles through the Holy Spirit 
 who is given to them. They are constituted Pastors in the Church, 
 to be the teachers of doctrine, the priests of sacred worship and the ministers of governance.” 

At Canon 381 § 1: “In the diocese entrusted to his care, the diocesan Bishop has all the ordinary, 
 proper and immediate power required for the exercise of his pastoral office, 
 except in those matters which the law or a decree of the Supreme Pontiff 
 reserves to the supreme or to some other ecclesiastical authority.” 

Against that background the Roman Catholic Bishop of the Diocese of Christchurch reports on his pastoral 
initiatives and governance responsibilities to his priests, Christ’s faithful and the organisations and 
individuals that support his work, both financially and spiritually, in the diocese. 

Reporting Entity 
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REPORTING ENTITY / BISHOP EMERITI 

Bishop (John) Basil Meeking   
Born:  19 November, 1929 in Ashburton 
Ordained Priest:  19 July, 1953 
Ordained Bishop:  3 June, 1987 
Retired:  February, 1996 
Parishes, Ministries and Assignments: 
(1954 until September, 2006) Beckenham/St Martins; Chaplain - 
Christchurch Hospital;  Studies at the University of St Thomas 
Aquinas (Angelicum), Rome (Doctor of Sacred Theology); Kaiapoi; 
Methven; Bryndwr; Official and later Under-Secretary of the Pontifical 

Council for Christian Unity, Rome; Bishop of Christchurch; latterly, work with Cardinal Francis George in 
Portland Oregon and in Chicago, his liaison with the Lumen Christi Institute in the University of Chicago 
and  with the Community of St John Cantius, Chicago. 
Retirement means: Keeping up with friends not least via e-mail; the garden at St John Fisher House; 
occasional pastoral work in the diocese; the Byrd Festival with Cantores in Ecclesia, Portland Oregon; 
contacts with the Institute of Christ  the King;  the international ecumenical Dialogue with the Disciples of 
Christ; a lot of reading; some writing. 

Bishop John Jerome Cunneen 
Born:  5 May 1932 in Christchurch 
Ordained as a priest:  8 July 1956 
Parishes Served:  Dallington, Cathedral, Rangiora/Oxford, 
Addington, Timaru North, Bishopdale, Burnside 
Ordained as a Bishop:  30 November 1992 
Appointed Bishop of Christchurch:  15 December 1995 
Retired:  5 May 2007 
Retirement means: Being with friends, reading, relaxing, 
taking in a concert / movie / exhibition. 

Bishop Emeriti 



Barry Philip Jones 
Roman Catholic Bishop of Christchurch 

Born: 29 August 1941 in Rangiora 

Ordained priest: 4 July 1966 

Parishes and Ministries served: 

Timaru North, Cathedral, Christchurch Hospital, Kumara, Akaroa, Sockburn, Te Rangimarie, Burnham, 
Vice Rector Good Shepherd House, Riccarton, Greymouth 

Ordained Coadjutor Bishop: 4 October 2006 

Appointed Catholic Bishop of Christchurch: 5 May 2007 

What the bishop likes to do in his leisure time: 
Classical music, gardening, mountain biking. 

Bishop Barry's motto: 

" The Lord delights in His people " 
(Psalm 149:4) 

Bishop Barry's crest: 

When praying the Morning Prayer of the Church on 
Sundays, some lines from Psalm 149 often make me 
pause: 

“ For the Lord takes delight in his people, 
he crowns the poor with salvation ” 

These words express the mystery of God’s love for 
all humanity and, on its behalf, the ongoing work of 
the Holy Spirit to form the holy people of the 
Church in each generation. 

All of this has been accomplished by the paschal 
mystery of Jesus, frequently described in  the New 
Testament as the Lamb of God. 

He bears the wounds of his passion but has 
triumphed and therefore stands erect according 
to the Book of Revelation, 5:6. 
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ROMAN CATHOLIC BISHOP OF CHRISTCHURCH 

Bishop John Cunneen ordained Bishop Barry Jones on Wednesday 4th October at the Cathedral of the 
Blessed Sacrament in the presence of the Apostolic Nuncio, His Excellency Archbishop Charles Balvo, 11 
Bishops from throughout Oceania, over 80 clergy from all New Zealand Dioceses and a congregation of 
well over 1,000 people. 
 
Bishop Barry's first Episcopal Mass was on Thursday 5th October, 2006. 



“A diocese is a portion of the people of God, which is entrusted to a Bishop to be 
nurtured by him, with the co-operation of the presbyterium, in such a way that, 
remaining close to its pastor and gathered by him through the Gospel and the Eucharist 
in the Holy Spirit, it constitutes a particular Church. In this Church, the one holy, 
catholic and apostolic Church of Christ truly exists and functions.”    (Can 369) 

“As a rule, that portion of the people of God, which constitutes a diocese or other 
particular Church is to have a defined territory, so that it comprises all the faithful who 
live in that territory.”  (Can 372 § 1) 

Located in the central South Island (refer fig 1) the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch covers an area 
of 5.4155m hectares and includes the Chatham Island group located some 860km to the east. The 
usually resident population within the diocesan boundaries is 484,626. The Catholic population is 
66,237.2 

The work of the Diocese is substantially delivered through 51 parishes each headed by a priest. 
However religious & lay communities, a relatively small number of paid employees, and a 
significant number of volunteers support this work. 

 Area 5.4155m hectares 

 Population 66,237 

 Parishes - 51 

 Lay Communities - 1 

 Schools - 37 

 Hospitals & Homes - 4 

fig 11 

Chatham Islands 
860km 

Our Diocese 

1 Fig 1 - Cartography by Terralink International, copyright 2005 
2 2001 Census of Population and Dwellings (2001 Areas), Statistics New Zealand 
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OUR DIOCESE 



Dear Brothers and Sisters in the Lord, 
 
Since the annual financial report last year, the Holy See has accepted the 
resignation of Bishop John Cunneen and he has laid aside the burden of 
office which he had been carrying so manfully because of his impaired 
health. Both he and Bishop Basil Meeking, Bishops Emeriti of Christchurch, 
now dwell in the suitable accommodation of St John Fisher House, 190 
Brougham Street, Sydenham, Christchurch. 
 
This annual report is made up of numbers which is as it should be. They 
tell their own story, but behind the numbers and the activities are persons 
contributing their skills and their love to the service of God and the Church. 
I thank all the persons involved in the Diocesan Advisory Boards and 
Councils and to their chairpersons, Geoff Bailey for the Diocesan 
Management and Finance Board, Rex Lynch for the Education Council and 
Murray Winder, recently appointed to chair the Welfare Council. 
 
The Diocese is fortunate in having staff members who are skilled and 
professional in the execution of their duties and responsibilities. All of them 
are delighted to be able to serve the Church in a variety of ways and I thank 
them for the valuable service. The specific character of working 
professionally for the Diocese is to be made explicit by a monthly 
celebration of Holy Mass to which all diocesan staff are invited. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
† Barry Jones 
Bishop of Christchurch 
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Bishop   Most Reverend Barry Jones DD (from 05.05.2007) 

Bishop Emeriti   Most Reverend John Cunneen DD 
 Most Reverend Basil Meeking DD 

Vicar General   Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor 

Chancellor   Reverend Monsignor James Harrington 

College of Consultors   Reverend Peter Costello 
 Reverend Monsignor James Harrington 
 Reverend Monsignor Barry Jones 
 (appointed Bishop 05.05.2007) 
 Reverend Rick Loughnan 
 Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor 
 Reverend Simon Eccleton (appointed 03.07.2007) 
 Reverend John Fitzmaurice (appointed 03.07.2007) 

Diocesan Management and Finance Board   Geoff Bailey, Chairman  
 Greg Bevin 
 Stephen Boock 
 Robin Corcoran 
 Rex Lynch 
 George Macfarlane 
 Barbara Matthews 
 Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor 
 Reverend Kevin O’Grady (RIP 20.09.2006) 
 Brian Phillips  

Diocesan Education Council   Rex Lynch, Chairman 
 Reverend John Fitzmaurice 
 Robin Kilworth 
 David Lamb 
 Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor 

Diocesan Welfare Council   Reverend Kevin O’Grady, Chairman (RIP 20.09.2006) 
 Murray Winder, Chairman 
 Charlotte Boyes 
 Mary Caldwell 
 Brian Cowan 
 Brian Dilger 
 Joan Doocey 
 Carey Haines 
 Lynda Macdonald 
 Sister Oliver Plunket LCM 
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Directory 



Managers   

 Diocesan Financial Administrator Paddy Beban 
 Catholic Education Office Mike Nolan 
 Diocesan Youth Team Clare Dooley 
 Catholic Social Services Jon Brian 
 Finance  Janice Rennell 
 Pastoral Planning Office Mike Stopforth 

Auditor   Ernst & Young 
 Ernst & Young House 
 227 Cambridge Terrace 
 Christchurch 

Solicitors   Cavell Leitch Law 
Level 15 
Clarendon Towers 
Cnr Oxford Terrace & Worcester Street 
Christchurch 

Investment Advisors   Goldman Sachs JB Were (NZ) Ltd 
 141 Cambridge Terrace 
 Christchurch 

Bankers   Westpac 
Level 4 
Canterbury Centre 
166 Cashel St 
Christchurch      

Engineers   Eliot Sinclair & Partners Ltd 
 Level 5 

Transport House 
151 Kilmore St 
Christchurch 
 
Opus International Consultants Ltd 
20 Moorhouse Avenue 
Christchurch 

Location   Cathedral House 
 122 Barbadoes Street 

  Christchurch 

Executive Directory 
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About 1990 in widespread consultation among all sections of the people of the Catholic Diocese of 
Christchurch a survey indicated that there was a clear consensus about the pastoral priorities for this 
local church (i.e. diocese). 
 

 The first priority was discerned to be evangelisation. The root of this word is the Latin 
and Greek words for Gospel.  This is the good news announced by Jesus Christ, prepared 
for by the prophets etc. in the Old Testament and fulfilled in the death and resurrection of 
Christ and celebrated in the Church he brought into being. Its task is to proclaim, explain 
and witness to this Gospel.  Throughout the Catholic world, formation, first in homes, in 
the education systems of our schools and colleges, and preaching and teaching for all in 
parishes are the ordinary means of evangelisation.  Special programmes of training are 
provided. 

 
 The second priority is marriage and the family. Sound families are cornerstones for stable 

societies.  School, home and parish strive to work collaboratively to produce good 
citizens of our nation, cities, towns and rural areas. 

 
 The third priority is Catholic Education, not just through our Catholic schools but pre-

schools and adult formation programmes. 
 

 The fourth priority is youth, addressing their needs for the well-being of the young and 
the development of a more balanced society is a pressing imperative today and into the 
future. 

 
Reflecting the Church’s fundamental principle of subsidiarity, much of the work and focus on these 
priorities is at parish level and by religious orders, because they are so much closer to the people. 
However in a number of cases the Bishop has established, at diocesan level, agencies and trusts that can 
support and facilitate this work. Those agencies are: 
 

 The Catholic Education Office 
 Catholic Social Services 
 The Diocesan Youth Team 
 Diocesan Administration 
 Pastoral Planning Office 
 The Funding Team 
 The Christchurch Catholic Diocesan Development Fund 
 The Diocesan Foundation 
 The Maryville Trust Board 

 
The latter three are separately constituted trusts with their own reporting requirements. Other than to 
allude to the structure, purpose and brief financial information about these trusts, it is not intended to 
provide detailed financial performance statements for these entities as part of this Annual Report. 

Pastoral Priorities 
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PASTORAL PRIORITIES 



Our Mission 

Catholic Youth Team  

“… is to be a faith filled team, 
sharing Christ with young people and young adults, 

supporting them in their life journey, 
calling them to active and 
responsible participation 

within the life of the Church.” 
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Diocesan Administration Team  
One team, in accord, working together to 
support the Church, the Bishop, the Priests 
and the pastoral mission of the Diocese. 

We will do this by: 
 Living our agreed values in a 

spirit of holiness. 
 Continuously respecting each other. 
 Ensuring effective stewardship. 
 Delivering innovative leadership 

and quality advice. 

Catholic Education Office  
“ … for the benefit of those involved in the 

educational mission of the Church in 
the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch is to: 

 Value biblically, 
 Listen intently, 
 Think wisely, 
 Challenge compassionately, 
 Act justly.” 

Catholic Social Services  

“… exists in the light of the Gospel, 
and the teachings of the Catholic Church 

to foster human dignity through the 
provision of services that enable 

families and individuals to 
develop their full potential.” 

OUR MISSION 



CHAIRMAN’S INTRODUCTION 
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In May this year Bishop John Cunneen retired and Bishop Barry Jones became the ninth 
Bishop of our Diocese. We wish Bishop John good health and an enjoyable retirement. 

Youth work was always a priority for Bishop John. The outstanding success of the Diocesan 
Youth Team and its wide ranging influence throughout the Diocese is a very obvious legacy 

of his leadership of the Diocese. 

Monsignor Gerard O’Connor, Vicar General of the Diocese, was a member of this Board until he 
transferred to St Patrick’s Parish, Greymouth early this year. His workload as Vicar General increased 
tremendously during the period of Bishop John’s illness and while continuing with his Parish and Hospital 
Chaplaincy responsibilities he also worked daily from the Bishop’s office in Cathedral House. He was 
always his usual cheerful helpful self, no matter how great the work pressure. 

The most significant financial activity for the Diocese this year has been the work on the Rolleston land 
subdivision. 

The funds from this project will be invested in land and buildings required for today’s mission of the 
Church and income producing investments. 

Financial Year Ended 30th June 2007 
The net surplus for the year was $121,000. This surplus is arrived at after allowing for capital expenditure 
and loan principal receipts and payments. 

The detail of capital expenditure is in Note 12 to the annual accounts. 

The income and expenditure of the Diocese was within budgeted figures for the year, apart from the 
budgeted income from the Rolleston subdivision project, which will become income in the year ended 
30th June 2008. This is a timing matter and Note 9 to the annual accounts gives the detail. 

The Diocesan income comes from Parish collection returns, Catholic Development Fund’s surplus, grants 
from Government and trusts and investment income. 

Catholic Development Fund 
The annual surplus distribution the Diocese receives from the Catholic Development Fund is a major 
source of income to the Diocese. 

This year the distribution to the Diocese was $500,000. 

The CDF result achieved by George Macfarlane, Chairman, his trustees and the Diocesan administration 
team was outstanding. 

Diocesan Administration Staff 
The Diocese and Advisory Boards are very well served by the staff of the Diocese. 

We are very fortunate to have Paddy Beban in the Financial Administrator’s role. His wide range of 
commercial skills and his understanding of church matters are well suited to this senior position. 

The administration team are very pleasant and professional to work with. 

Conclusion 
In conclusion, I thank each member of the Board for their contribution to the progress of the Diocese 
during the year. 

The Board members possess a wide range of skills and together with the support of the Diocesan 
administration staff we are able to fulfil our advisory role for the Bishop. 

The Diocesan Management & Finance Board 
Chairman’s Introduction - Geoff Bailey 



Catholic Diocese of Christchurch 2007 Annual Report 11 

FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Supporting the 
Pastoral Mission OVERHEAD 

ACTIVITIES 
• Diocesan Financial 

Administrator 

• Financial Accounting 

• Administration 

• Cathedral House and other 
Administrative Buildings 

INCOME 
PRODUCING 
ACTIVITIES 

• Property Development 

• Treasury Activity 

• Insurance 

• Accounting Services 

• Other Income 

The triangle shape illustrates the three-fold mission of Our Lord Jesus Christ. He was, and is, priest, prophet and shepherd. 
His mission is entrusted to his Church until the end of the world. At the centre of the triangle is an ancient Catholic symbol, 
which has been used to represent Jesus Christ from before 312 AD. It comprises two letters from the Greek alphabet, chi = 
X and rho = P super-imposed on each other.  They are the first two letters of the Greek word for Christ, which 
translates the Hebrew word for the Messiah, God's anointed servant. The image, therefore, is a monogram 
and symbol for Christ, crucified and risen. 

SHEPHERD 

“To care for” 

MINISTRY OF CHARITY 

PRIEST 

“To sanctify” 

MINISTRY OF LITURGY 

PROPHET 

“To teach” 

MINISTRY OF THE WORD 

Financial Reporting 

PRIEST 
• Pastoral Initiatives 
• Priestly Formation 
• Cathedral 

PROPHET 
• Catholic Education 
• Youth & Young 

People 
• Justice & Peace 

SHEPHERD 
• Welfare 
• Governance 
• Bishops’ Conference 
• Tribunal 
• Thanksgiving 
• Communication 

MISSIONMISSION  
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STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE 

In Bishop John Cunneen’s Pastoral Letter of 14th February 2006 he announced to the 
Diocesan Family the establishment of the Diocesan Pastoral Plan. 

This year has been a time of transition as our new Bishop assumes his role. Bishop Barry 
fully endorses the Pastoral Plan as the way ahead for us into the future, 

“ The Pastoral Plan for our Diocese has been developed over a number of  years at the initiative of Bishop John Cunneen.  
The Council of Priests oversaw this work, and I was a member of it, so I have been familiar with the plan from the very 
beginning. I endorse it, and recommend it, because the Church must always work in its present situation. As is well 
known, the need for excellent collaboration between  priests and lay faithful to carry forward the mission of the Church is 
paramount. Jesus Christ is our great high priest and he gives the members of the Church a share in his priesthood; all of 
them through the Sacrament of Baptism, and, as well, bishops, priests and deacons, become his ministers through the 
Sacrament of Holy Orders. Through Jesus Christ, High Priest, we know that the Lord delights in his people.” Bishop B Jones 

The Pastoral Plan is having an effect in the Diocese in 
a number of ways by providing a focus for Pastoral 
Ministry. 

As at end of June 2007 the following had been 
achieved: 

Pastoral Areas  
Four out of nine pastoral areas have been invited by 
the Bishop to begin implementing the Plan; 
Christchurch West, South Canterbury, Mid Canterbury 
and Christchurch South. A fifth pastoral area 
(Christchurch East) was launched in August 2007. 

When a pastoral area is ’launched’ a process begins* 
to help the implementation of the Pastoral Plan. 

A resource document has been produced called the 
‘Pastoral Area Council Manual’ which assists the 
Pastoral Area Councils in this task. This manual has 
been provided to two other dioceses in New Zealand 
for them to modify and use in their diocese. 

Each of the five pastoral areas that have been 
launched is at a different stage in the planning 
process, enabling us to learn of the experiences of 
each pastoral area as the Plan evolves. 

In addition a number of other parishes have been 
visited and a presentation given about the Pastoral 
Plan. 

Ministry of Liturgy This section of the Bishop’s mission, brings focus on pastoral 
initiatives, pastoral planning and priestly formation, the development of our seminarians and pre 
seminarians, the professional development of our priests and providing for their retirement. 

Maintaining, preserving and enhancing the “Chief House of God”3 in the Diocese, the Cathedral 
of the Blessed Sacrament; keeping it as “the place where God gathers the Catholic Church 
around its Bishop in the sacred action which surpasses all others”4 is an essential part of this 
ministry. 
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The Pastoral Planning Office 
From the Bishop’s Deputy for the Pastoral Plan  - Mike Stopforth 

* Pastoral Planning Process 

3 Bishop John J Grimes SM, Easter pastoral letter, 1889 
4 Bishop Basil Meeking, Bishop of Christchurch, November 1993 

To
 S

an
ct

ify
 

Further information about the Pastoral Plan 
can be found on the website: 

www.chch.catholic.org.nz/pastoralplan 

Preparation 

Bishop formally invites 
the Pastoral Area 

to begin the process 

Pastoral Area Council Stage 1: Personal Formation  

Stage 2: Exploring the role of the 
Pastoral Area Council (PAC) 

Stage 3: Developing Parish Profiles. 
Hearing each other’s Profile. 

Stage 5: Developing a Plan 

Stage 4: Identifying Parish needs. 
Hearing each other’s needs. 

Any necessary discussion occurs 

Time of prayer or a PAC meeting 

Pastoral Area Plan 
presented to Bishop 

Stage 6: Pastoral Area Plan 
implemented 

Bishop visits Pastoral Area 
to accept the Plan 

Ongoing evaluation 

Bishop’s Deputy visiting parishes 

Forming the Pastoral Area Council 

Holiness  Communio  Collaboration  Mission 



Over the year assistance has been provided for parishes 
undergoing changes: 

 Sacred Heart Timaru in the withdrawal of the Society 
of Mary; 

 St Matthew’s, Bryndwr and Our Lady of Perpetual 
Help, St Albans in sharing the same parish priest; 

 Our Lady of Fatima, Mairehau and Holy Family, 
Burwood in sharing the same parish priest. 

 In some areas, there have been gatherings of various 
people, for example in Christchurch West the 
principals of the primary and secondary schools came 
together; in North Canterbury the priests of the area 
came together to look at how the parishes might 
further collaborate. 

Training and Formation  
The Pastoral Plan states that: 

 “Ongoing Training and Formation are essential 
for all involved in pastoral leadership and care. 

It is important that Pastoral Area Teams have 
Priests and Pastoral Workers who are trained and formed 

to serve in a more collaborative environment, 
within the parish and between parishes” 

Source: Diocesan Pastoral Plan p32 

A programme is being developed to form those involved 
in pastoral ministry. This will be in four key areas – 
Spirituality, Pastoral Care, Human Development and 
Theology/Scripture (Diocesan Pastoral Plan p32). 
This last area of Theology/Scripture will include NZQA 
courses offered through the Catholic Education Office. 
This year two courses have been offered to our Pastoral 
Workers (and others) for the first time. A schedule of 
courses has been prepared for 2008. 

Pastoral Workers  

Ongoing support has been provided to current 
Pastoral Workers, working through the Bishop’s 
Liaison for Pastoral Workers. In addition a generic 
position description has been developed as a 
resource for parishes/pastoral areas who wish to 
employ a Pastoral Worker. 

Chaplaincies  
A practical outworking of the Pastoral Plan 
is to review how those involved in 
pastoral ministry are being supported, 
especially those who may be working 
in isolation. As a result the hospital, 
prison and tertiary chaplains gathered 
for the first time during the year for 
mutual support and input.

 “Vatican II's greatest achievement has 
been described as the restoration of the 
baptismal dignity of the laity.  In our diocese, 
as in much of the western world, the Holy 
Spirit is now calling upon the baptised laity of 
all local faith communities to explore and live 
fully the mission of evangelisation that is at the 
centre of the Church.” 
- Philip McKendry 
(Mid Canterbury Pastoral Area Council Chair) 
 
 “The most encouraging aspect I have 

witnessed at the Christchurch South Pastoral 
Area Council is the emerging understanding of 
collaborative ministry required among 
the parish representatives.  The last meeting of 
the Area Council studied the profiles of each 
contributing parish and revealed an intense 
enthusiasm for sharing the gifts and talents of 
each parish in pursuit of the mission of the 
Church in the Area. This bodes well for 
greater cooperation in the mission of spreading 
of the Gospel in our parishes, as the shortage 
of priests makes a greater impact.” 
- Msgr Tom Power 
(St Peter’s Beckenham and 
Christchurch South Pastoral Area Priest Coordinator) 

Pastoral Workers Day - 7 September 2006 

Chaplains Day - 15 March 2007 

Christchurch South Launch - John Walsh, from 
St Peter's Beckenham reading one of the Pastoral Principles 



Hospital Chaplaincy is primarily to ensure that people have the opportunity to receive the sacraments. It is 
also seen as an expression of the care of the Church for those in need in terms of health. The presence of 
the Chaplaincy Team is often a source of inspiration and solace to people when they are unwell. They are 
also a support for the relatives and staff of the hospital.  

On 20th September 2006 the death of Father Kevin O’Grady was a great 
shock to all those connected to the hospitals in Christchurch and 
particularly Christchurch Hospital. Father Kevin had been Hospital 
Chaplain for around 30 years and numerous people had a story about 
the pastoral care that Father Kevin provided for individuals and families 
in times of need. He also had a significant rapport with hospital staff. As 
the tribute in the Inform (December 2006) stated, “He was a big man 
with a big heart and his death has left a huge gap in many lives”. 

The Christchurch Central (Christchurch Hospital and Nazareth House) and Christchurch South (The 
Princess Margaret and Hillmorton Hospitals) Pastoral Areas have responded to the need to provide pastoral 
care for these hospitals, and particularly Christchurch Hospital.   

These developments include: 
 The introduction of the roster system for priests to provide emergency care; 
 The appointment of Sister Mary Hanrahan RSM to the role of Pastoral Chaplain; 
 The introduction of the Volunteer Hospital Chaplaincy Assistants programme which will provide four 

Catholics to support the work of Chaplains in our hospitals. 

The Diocese has a role in administering and supporting this pastoral work in hospitals as follows: 
 Burwood Hospital -  Sister Irene Jones RSM, 

 -  Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor (until December 2006), 
 -  Reverend Miles O’Malley (from January 2007); 

 Christchurch Hospital -  Sister Patricia Clark RNDM (until December 2006) 
 -  Sister Mary Hanrahan RSM (from February 2007); 

 Christchurch Women’s Hospital -  Sister Irene Jones RSM (until March 2007), 
 -  Sister Mary Hanrahan RSM (from April 2007); 

 Hillmorton Hospital - Brother Stephen Coakley OH 
 Nurse Maude Hospice and Hospital 

- Sister Irene Jones RSM and Reverend John Adams. 
 The Princess Margaret Hospital 

- Reverend Bernard Carney SM (from January 2007); 

In addition support is given to: 
 Nazareth House and St John of God Hospital. 

Bishop Barry Jones DD is the New Zealand Catholic Bishops’ 
Conference Deputy for the Inter-church Council for Hospital Chaplaincy 
Aotearoa, New Zealand. 

The net cost of providing the Hospital Chaplaincy service was $8,139. 
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Hospital Chaplaincy 

Priests Orientation Programme 
A programme has been developed to assist priests who are 
new to our Diocese, particularly those who are from overseas. 
This programme is in two parts; initially providing practical 
support for the priest and secondly an orientation day 
(including input on New Zealand and Church culture, the 
Treaty of Waitangi, diocesan policies and systems, Pastoral 
Plan and pastoral practise. 

“ He was a big man 
with a big heart 

and his death has 
left a huge gap in 

many lives ” 

Sr Mary Hanrahan RSM & Sr Patricia Clark RNDM 

Fr Thomas Grzegorzewski - 
a priest from Poland 
working in our diocese 
has been through the 
Priests Orientation Programme  



Seminary 
Fourteen years ago come October 21st the New Zealand Bishops were in 
Rome meeting with Pope John Paul II. 

In his address to the New Zealand Bishops the late Pope John Paul II said 
(besides encouraging developing collaboration with priests, religious and 
the laity) 

“ It is above all the Bishop’s duty to 
give the closest attention to the training of priests in seminaries and houses of formation. 

A bishop must be able to accompany his seminarians 
with personal interest and paternal affection, ensuring that they are given 

the spiritual, intellectual and human formation needed to make them 
men of communion, possessing mature faith and true apostolic zeal.” 
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Prison Chaplaincy 
The Prison Chaplaincy Service of Aotearoa New Zealand Trust Board is contracted to the Department of 
Corrections to provide chaplaincy services in our prisons. During the reporting period the Trust Board 
entered into a new three-year agreement with the New Zealand Catholic Bishops’ Conference to maintain a 
minimum of 6 full-time suitably qualified Catholic chaplains at all the Department’s sites.  

The Bishop in each diocese employs chaplains according to the needs of the diocese and is funded out of 
the national agreement according to a formula based on the number of inmates, the geographical 
distribution of prison sites and the number of chaplains appointed by the Bishop. 

The Christchurch Diocese employs four part-time (2.25 FTE’s) chaplains. They are based at Christchurch 
Men’s Prison, Christchurch Women’s Prison and Rolleston.  

The Diocese received a distribution of $53,729 in the year just ended as part of the contract. The service 
cost $125,871. 

Good Shepherd House 5 

Located in Innes Road, this pre-seminary house was established by Bishop Basil Meeking 14 years ago, as 
a response to what the late Pope John Paul II called “a period of human, Christian, intellectual, and 
spiritual preparation for candidates for the major seminary.” It offers a one-year course of spiritual 
formation and academic training to men before they go to the Holy Cross Seminary in Auckland to begin 
their training for the priesthood. 

The Bishop for the time being is the Rector of this formation house. Reverend Rick Loughnan is the live-
in Vice-Rector. His role is that of day-to-day management and looking after the interests of those in 
residence. Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor is the Spiritual Director and Reverend John 
Fitzmaurice is Dean of Studies. 

In the 14 years, a number of men have gone on to the National Seminary 
and been ordained. There is one student who attended Good Shepherd 
House who is currently studying at the National Seminary. At present 
there are no pre-seminarians here at Good Shepherd House. At this time 
there is one Catholic man in his 30’s living in the House who is 
discerning a vocation to the Religious Priesthood. 

The cost of providing this pre-seminary facility and programme was 
$19,977 in the current year. 

Prayer for 
Priestly Vocations 
Father, in your plan for our 
salvation you provide 
shepherds for your people. 

Fill your Church with the 
spirit of courage and love. 

Raise up worthy ministers for 
your altars and ardent but gentle 
servants of the gospel. 

We ask this in the name of Jesus, 
the Eternal High Priest. 
Amen 
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Statement of Cost of Services - Ministry of Liturgy  
- For the Year Ending 30 June 2007 

The New Zealand Bishops have tried to heed his call. Since 1993 our National Seminary at Mosgiel has 
moved (1999) to Auckland and separated into two institutes, both in Ponsonby: Holy Cross Seminary and 
Good Shepherd Theologate. The Seminary provides the spiritual and human formation. The Theologate 
gives to both Diocesan and Marist Seminarians the academic formation. While students are in the 
Seminary, and on pastoral placement in their home diocese, pastoral training builds on the human and 
spiritual formation given in the seminary. 

Two seminarians at varying study levels were supported in residence for all or part of this financial year. 

Your continued prayerful support for these young men is both valued and appreciated as is the financial 
support that is provided through our diocesan wide appeal. 

This financial year the Diocese paid some $27,128 for its seminarians’ costs both at the Seminary and the 
Theologate. The 2007 Seminary Appeal realised $13,862. 

2006   2007  2007  2008 
Actual   Budget  Actual  Budget 

   (Unaudited)    (Unaudited) 
'000   '000  '000  '000 

  Operating Income      
201  Grants and Donations 187  481  149 
230  Other Income 168  213  151 
431  Total 355  694  300 

        

  Less Expenditure      
241  Personnel Costs 320  339  369 

4  Consultancy 10  15  10 
10  Depreciation 15  18  9 
25  Interest on Loans 150  3  0 

593  Other 486  432  420 
873  Total 981  807  808 

        

(442)  Net Operating (Deficit) (626)  (113)  (508) 
        

0  Non Operating Revenue 0  0  0 
(442)  Total (Deficit) recognised for period (626)  (113)  (508) 

        

0  Internal Recoveries 0  0  6 
(86)  Less Internal Charges (75)  (78)  (88) 
(86)   (75)  (78)  (82) 

        

69  Net  Transfers (to) / from Special Funds 41  (21)  20 
        

(459)  Net (Deficit ) (660)  (212)  (570) 
        

(12)  Capital Expenditure (24)  (46)  (4) 
0  Loan Principal Receipts 0  0  0 

(140)  Loan Principal Repayments (140)  (140)  0 
        

(611)  Net Operating (Deficit)  (824)  (398)  (574) 
  (after internal transfers and capital expenditure)      

        

  Net Cost by Activity      
(327)  Pastoral Initiatives (261)  (175)  (207) 

0  Pastoral Planning Office (106)  (108)  (118) 
(53)  Chaplaincy (68)  (80)  (99) 

(158)  Priestly Formation (175)  (78)  (97) 
79  Cathedral (50)  229  (49) 

(459)  Total Net Cost (660)  (212)  (570) 



Ministry of the Word 
 

The principal work of this ministry is Catholic Education and Youth, two of the pastoral priority 
areas established by the Bishop. 
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The Diocesan Education Council met regularly during the year. 

I am happy to report another successful year in Catholic Education. 

Over the last five years we have had positive growth in student numbers at both primary and secondary 
schools. Primary rolls increased by 7% over the five year period and secondary rolls by 9%. 

This has occurred at a time of falling rolls at other schools in the area covered by the diocese. We also 
teach a number of foreign fee paying students and a recent count recorded 68 at primary schools and 155 
at secondary schools. A number of our schools, both secondary and primary, have reached the maximum 
permitted roll as set down in the integration agreements. On average the primary sector has reached 79% 
and the secondary sector 81% of permitted maximum rolls. Due to the falling rolls in other schools we are 
having difficulty in getting the Ministry of Education to agree to any increase in maximum rolls. We have 
been asked to consider all schools in total rather than as individuals and while this makes some 
mathematical sense obviously the practicality of such a proposal is fraught with difficulty. 

We are fortunate in the calibre of staff at the Catholic Education Office who continue to offer more and 
more educational opportunities to students, teachers, board members and parishioners. 

We continue to be the Christchurch campus of the Wellington Catholic Education Centre and a recent 
count showed 143 students enrolled from Christchurch, Greymouth and Timaru in a range of Diploma and 
Certificate courses. 

The Education Council extends our thanks to the staff for the work done during the year. Cora 
Grennan CHF, Eleanor Capper RSJ, Mary Wood RSM, Jill McLoughlin RSJ, Charles Shaw, 
Maureen Kerr and special thanks to Mike Nolan who continues to manage the office so well. 

My personal thanks to the members of the Council, David Lamb (Bryndwr Parish), Robin 
Kilworth (Ashburton Parish), Father John Fitzmaurice (Cathedral Parish and Bishop’s 
Deputy for Education), Monsignor Gerry O’Connor who retired from the 
Council early in 2007, 

We must also thank Bishop Barry Jones who attends our 
meetings. 

In addition our thanks to Paddy Beban the Diocesan Financial 
Administrator for his attendances and inputs and Donna Malone 
and Catherine Waller for their minute taking and organisational 
skills. 

The Diocesan Education Council 
From the Chairman - Rex Lynch 

To
 T
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Photo courtesy of St Mary’s School Manchester Street 



Catholic Diocese of Christchurch 2007 Annual Report 18 

STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE 

Our Vision is a future where our work ensures the 
Catholic Diocese of Christchurch is able to 
positively respond to the current challenges facing 
the educational mission of the Church, in order to 
always be in a position to: 

Let future generations learn, 
and... 

Teach their young to 
trust God (Psalm 78) 

Vision, Purpose and Mission  
The existence of the Catholic Education Office reflects a commitment of the Bishop, and the whole 
Catholic community of the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch, to the education of the young, and “not so 
young”, within a faith environment, grounded in the vision of Christ. This education takes place in the 
parishes and in the schools of the Diocese.  

Our role, as administrators, is to minister to the ministers; our role is one of service. 

In responding to the direction and imperatives given to us above, we have developed, and are committed 
to faithfully responding to, and realising, the following vision, purpose and mission: 

Overview of legal, employment 
and financial matters 

Our Mission, for the benefit of those involved 
in the educational mission of the Church in the 
Catholic Diocese of Christchurch, is to: 

  Value biblically   Listen intently 

  Think wisely   Challenge compassionately 

   Act justly   Praise appropriately 

The Catholic Education Office 
From the Manager - Mike Nolan 

This agency is located in the old administrative wing of the former Xavier College 
(now Catholic Cathedral College). 

Organisational Structure  

Our Purpose is to best utilise our talents and skills 
to lead, serve and assist those involved in the 
educational mission of the Church in the Catholic 
Diocese of Christchurch in order to continue to: 

Let future generations learn, and 
enable them to grow up, 

to teach their young to trust God, 
to remember great deeds, 

and to cherish the law (Psalm 78) 

Paddy Beban 
Diocesan Financial Administrator 

Mike Nolan
Manager

Religious 
Education Advisor 

for 
Primary Schools 

Religious 
Education Advisor 

for 
Secondary Schools 

Advisor for
Parish and 

Sacramental 
Programmes 

Advisor for
Special Character/ 
Teacher Support 

Services 

Reviewer for 
Catholic School 
Leadership and 

Special Character 

Educator for 
Parish Leadership 

and Service 

 



Statement of Service Performance  

The Catholic Education Office’s influence on educational outcomes within Catholic schools and parishes is 
somewhat indirect. We are not a provider of education to students in classrooms or parish 
Sacramental/Religious Education programmes. We are, in the main, a 
provider of leadership and training, support and development, for those 
who are actively engaged leading Catholic schools and parishes and 
educating students in classrooms and parish Sacramental/Religious 
Education programmes. 

Our role is based on three main areas of influence. 
We aim to provide: 

a) professional and personal development opportunities, 

b) resources, and 

c) pro-active leadership, guidance and support 
 
for those engaged in the educational mission of the Catholic Church in the Diocese of Christchurch. 

In all these endeavours the Catholic Education Office seeks, through its policies, budget, advice and 
relationships, to promote a holistic model of education for the schools and parishes it serves. I am pleased 
to highlight some of the progress we at the Catholic Education Office have made during 2006/2007, in 
each of these areas of influence, by providing some examples of our endeavours in this regard:  

Professional and Personal Development Opportunities  

Continue to provide regular Religious Education (RE) curriculum in-service opportunities for primary and 
secondary school RE teachers that responds to, and further develops, their own professional RE needs, as 
well as providing examples of strategies to use in the classroom.  

 In 2006/2007 Mary Wood RSM (Primary RE Advisor) held a series of DRS cluster meetings on planning, 
teaching and evaluating the Religious Education programme.  

Continue to support and contribute to the professional development opportunities provided by NZCEO, 
NAPCSS and NZCPPA for teachers aspiring to management positions in Catholic schools.  

 Maureen Kerr led a middle leadership and aspiring leaders day for 21 such aspiring Catholic school 
leaders in the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch. 

 Maureen Kerr facilitated five Catholic Primary Principals Learning Community groups. The CPPLC 
groups meet once a term. The themes for 2007 were: 

 Leading in a Catholic community 

 Empowering Leadership 

 The Principal as Mentor 

 Emotionally & Socially Intelligent Leaders 
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All Board of Trustees members will have a clear understanding of 
the special character values of Catholic schools.  

 In 2006/2007 Jill McLoughlin RSJ is working with each Board 
on a presentation entitled “Charism”. These 
meetings highlight the unique charism that 
underpins their school; what charism is; that their 
school’s charism reflects the unique spirit of the 
founding order/s of the school; how they can 
reclaim this special gift and allow it to influence 
the way things are done at this school. 

Human & Material Resources  

Continue to offer a Diploma in Religious Studies course to all 
interested teachers in the Diocese (for teacher accreditation) 
and/ or people interested in adult education in faith. 

 There are currently 121 adults enrolled in the Diploma in 
Religious Studies and Catechetical Studies programmes of 
study. 

 Eleanor Capper RSJ wrote the material for a new paper - 
“PM102 Introduction to Liturgy” - and this paper has been 
approved by the Bishop for teaching within the Catholic 
Diocese of Christchurch. 

 Thanks to the leadership of Charles Shaw (Secondary RE 
Advisor & NZQA Coordinator) the NZQA audit of the 
Catholic Education Office was successfully completed. 

Reviews  

Ensure that suitably qualified personnel conduct, lead and 
support Catholic Character reviews in every school, at least 
once every four years. 

 The new Catholic Special Character Review and 
Development document and the new reporting system for 
Proprietor’s Appointees, based on the three dimensions 
(plus the legal attestation dimension), of the Catholic 
Special Character Review and Development document, 
continues to enhance understanding of the various 
dimensions of Catholic Special Character within our 
schools. 

 Maureen Kerr (Catholic Special Character Review Leader) 
completed eleven Catholic Special Character reviews 
during the period of the 2006/2007 financial year. 

Catholic Diocese of Christchurch 2007 Annual Report 20 

STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE 

The prayer of 
the children of God 

In order for prayer to be fruitful, it must 
come from the heart and be able to touch 
God’s heart. See how Jesus taught his 
disciples to pray. Every time we say the 
“Our Father”, I believe that God looks at 
his hands, at the place where he has 
engraved us: “Upon the palms of my 
hands I have written your name.” 
(Is 49:16) God contemplates his hands, 
and he sees us there, nestling in them. 
How marvelous is God’s tenderness! 

Let us pray, let us say the “Our Father”. Let 
us live it and then we will be saints. 
Everything is there: God, myself, my 
neighbour. If I forgive, I can be holy, I can 
pray. Everything comes from a humble 
heart; when we have such a heart, we will 
know how to love God, how to love 
ourselves, and how to love our neighbour 
(Mt 22:37f.). That is nothing complicated, 
and yet we complicate our lives so much 
and make them heavy with so many extra 
loads. Only one thing counts: to be 
humble and to pray. The more you pray, 
the better you will pray. 

A child encounters no difficulty in 
expressing its ingenuous understanding in 
simple words that say a lot. Didn’t Jesus 
give Nicodemus to understand that we 
must become like a small child (Jn 3:3)? 
If we pray according to the Gospel, we 
will allow Christ to grow in us. So pray 
with love, the way children do, with the 
ardent desire to love much and to make 
beloved the person who is not loved. 

- Blessed Teresa of Calcutta (1910-1997) 
Foundress of the Missionary Sisters of Charity  

Photo courtesy of St Mary’s School Manchester Street 
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Networks  

Continue to develop, encourage and support positive linkages between the Catholic Education Office 
and NZCEO Ltd., NZCPCIS, NZCPPA, NAPCSS, diocesan Church organisations, the Council of Priests, 
parishes, parish and Catholic primary & secondary schools. 

 Regular meetings, email, phone, fax and mail contacts are conducted with these groups and individuals 
within these groups. 

For example: 

 The Manager of the Catholic Education Office participated in meetings and discussions with, and 
provided detailed comment to, the National Centre for Religious Studies on the Handbook for 
Certification in Catholic Special Character and Religious Education.  

 Mary Wood RSM (Primary RE Advisor) and Charles Shaw (Secondary RE Advisor) facilitated a meeting 
with the priests of the Diocese where they presented and discussed an overview of the primary and 
secondary Religious Education programmes. 

 Mary Wood RSM (Primary RE Advisor) and Charles Shaw (Secondary RE Advisor) facilitated a meeting 
with the priest and pastoral chaplains of the Diocese. 

 Cora Grennan CHS revised the Children’s Liturgy of the Word booklet for use in parishes. 

 Eleanor Capper RSJ conducted development sessions for extraordinary Ministers of Holy Communion 
in two pastoral areas. 

Leadership, Guidance and Support  

Develop, encourage and support positive linkages between the Catholic Education Office and NZCEO 
Ltd, NZCPCIS, NZCPPA, NAPCSS, diocesan Church organisations, the Council of Priests, parishes, parish 
and Catholic primary & secondary schools, the Ministry of Education, ERO, NZEI, PPTA, NZSTA, the 
College of Education and other educational agencies. 

 Regular meetings; email, phone, fax and mail contacts are conducted with these groups and individuals 
within these groups.  

For example:  

 The Catholic Education Office provided consultation services, advice and support to the Diocesan 
Board of Proprietors (DBOP) which resulted in the Bishop of Christchurch mandating a document 
entitled “Catholic Secondary School Priest and Pastoral Chaplaincy Services: Guidelines for the 
Catholic Diocese of Christchurch”. 

 The Catholic Education Office provided consultation services that resulted in a Memorandum of 
Understanding being signed between the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch and the University of 
Canterbury College of Education. 

 The Manager of the Catholic Education Office was elected to the Executive of 
the Association of Proprietors of Integrated Schools (APIS). 

 The Manager of the Catholic Education Office is a member of the 
Halswell/Wigram Area Strategy Community Consultation Reference 
Group. 

 Charles Shaw (Secondary RE Advisor) is an appointed 
member of the National Centre for Religious Studies’ 
(NCRS) Human Development and Sexuality 
Reference Group. 
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Paddy Beban 
Diocesan 

Financial Administrator 

Clare Dooley 
Director 

Young Adults
Worker 

Parish
Field Worker 

Events
Coordinator 

Youth Team
Chaplain 

Tertiary
Chaplain 

Tertiary Team 
Coordinator 

(Campus Minister)

Tertiary Team Workers (2)
(Campus Ministers) 

Bishop 

World Youth Day 
Coordinator 

Catholic Youth Team 

Spiritual Development Support 

Support Team Management and 
Diocesan Vision for Young Adult Ministry 

“Our Mission is to be a faith filled team, sharing Christ with 
young people and young adults, supporting them in their life journey, 

calling them to active and responsible participation within the life of the church.” 

What follows presents the Performance Objectives and a summary of how we achieved those this year. 

The Mission of the Catholic Youth Team is as follows: 

Overview of legal, employment 
and financial matters 

From the Director - Clare Dooley 

This agency is located next to the old administrative wing of the former Xavier College (now 
Catholic Cathedral College). 

The Bishop continues to be committed to the pastoral priority of “youth” and makes a 
significant commitment to young people and young adults through the Diocesan Youth 

Team. The Youth Team’s role is to (primarily) assist parishes to minister to young people so that our young 
people can be assisted to grow in faith and be supported in their life journey. 

Organisational Structure  
The team comprises five full time staff: 

 Clare Dooley (Director) 

 Matt O’Connell (Young Adults Worker) 

 Hannah Jenkins (Parish Field Worker) 

 Caitlin Humpfrys (Events Coordinator from Jan ‘07) 

 Edmund le Grelle (World Youth Day Coordinator 
 from Jan ‘07) 

It will do that by: 

1. Being a faith filled team. 

2. Providing the vision and overview of Catholic Youth and Young Adult 
Ministry in the Diocese. 

3. Supporting parishes so they can become youth and young adult 
friendly and have the opportunity 
to develop and maintain ministry to youth and young adults. 

4. Coordinating and facilitating diocesan based events and 
programmes for youth and young adults. 

5. In partnership with the Diocesan World Youth Day (WYD) 
Committee prepare for WYD 2008 and the legacy it will leave. 

6. Supporting Directors of Religious Studies, Chaplains 
and Campus Ministers in our Catholic schools. 

Catholic Youth Team Staff MembersCatholic Youth Team Staff Members  
at the 2007 Young Adults Soiréeat the 2007 Young Adults Soirée  
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Objectives and Performance Measures  

1. To be a faith filled team. 

 For team members to undertake the following – team prayer, staff retreats, team meetings with the 
chaplain, regular pastoral care / supervision and an active sacramental life. 

2. From the office of the Catholic Youth Team we will provide the vision and overview of Catholic 
Youth and Young Adult Ministry in the Diocese. 

 Connecting and forming partnerships with those who minister to or impact youth and young adults in 
the Diocese with the intention of being a hub of information, advice and coordination. 

This was achieved by: 
 Distribution of the Youth Team promotion material such as 

the bimonthly Update, Snippet newsletters. 
 We have updated our website and plan to continue developing 

the services linked to our website.  
 Holding a “Vision Night” to share the vision of the Youth Team 

with others. 
 Meeting with individual leaders and parishes to share 

information and resources. 
 Coordinating a regular network times for youth leaders to bring 

together those who are involved in parish or school youth ministry.  

3. To support parishes as they develop and maintain ministry to youth and young adults with the aim of 
integrating youth and young adults into parish life. 

 Being proactive in providing resources and encouragement to Parish Priests and Parish Councils; in 
order to raise the profile of Youth and Young Adult ministry. 

 Develop the CYT resource that will help parishes integrate young and young adults in parish life. 
Promote and communicate this to parishes. 

This was achieved by: 
 Youth Councils have been established in three parishes. These councils support the youth worker or 

youth leaders which provides for long term support and structure for youth ministry in a parish.  
 Providing support for parish youth and young adult leaders’ - leadership development, one on one 

meetings, resources, training and formation opportunities for their ministry. 
 The Parish Resource Person has helped ten parishes run youth group sessions throughout the year. She 

has also met regularly with youth leaders to support them with resources and ideas. 

4. To coordinate and facilitate Diocesan based events and programmes for youth and young adults. 

 Providing (Diocesan based) programmes that give an opportunity to experience and/or develop 
Community Building, Justice and Service, Prayer and Worship, Evangelisation and Catechesis 
(components for Catholic Youth Ministry) in the context of the wider Church. 

This was achieved by: 
 Four Diocesan Youth Masses were held in the Cathedral with consistently great 

numbers and a bulging Cathedral! 
 A celebration for WYD on 

Palm Sunday. 
 90 young people gathered for 

an evening of music, prayer 
and a teaching on the Pope’s 
letter to young people, daring 
them to love. 
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Arise: "It was a very fufilling 
day, I got a lot out of it. 
Enjoyed it so much, it was 
awesome! Everyone had done 
such a great job with everything 
that went on during the day. I 
will have to go again next year 
and I would so recommend that 
if you haven't been, give it ago! 
There is something in it for 
everyone.” - Jessica 

‘When I was first approached about Ignite, I was really nervous. The idea of having 
to meet new people and talking about my faith scared me a little. Doing the 
Krypton Factor Course at Burnham Army Camp took me right out of my comfort 
zone and I overcome so many personal challenges in that first weekend. Now I am 
10 months into my first year of Ignite and I am loving it! I am so much more 
confident in sharing my faith and opinions with others my age. It is so awesome 
knowing that there are young adults out there going through similar faith experiences 
as me! I am more confident in speaking in front of people! I have grown in my faith 
and have meet some amazing people along the way. I have made heaps of new 
friends and we have shared experiences that I know I will never forget! - Lillian 

 Our annual Sports Night was held for 100 young people at Pioneer Stadium. Our camp programmes 
included; the ‘JAM’ (Jesus and Me) Camp for those young people in years 7 to 10; the Revolution Camp 
for years 9 and 10. Antioch Camp for years 11 to 13. This camp is run for young people by young 
people. We have had two young adults’ camps. 

 We held our second ARISE Young Adult Conference in July 2006 at 
the St Bede’s Performing Arts Centre. Over 100 young adults joined 
us for this event. 

 The Young Adult Formation programme carried on for its second 
year, seeking to provide faith formation for young adults through a 
series of short blocks of talks by various speakers   

 Establishing Cell groups (Faith based discussion groups) for young 
adults. There are three groups running throughout the city.  

“While one off, big events like Arise are great 
many people need ongoing formation and cell groups fulfil that need, 

it’s made a real difference to my faith 
and helped me to take another step in my journey with God". - Michael 
 A Youth Leadership Development Programme called ‘Ignite’ was 

delivered for those young people in years 12 and 13.  

 Opportunities for young adults were provided for weekly adoration of 
the Blessed Sacrament. 

 A number of social activities were organised to build community 
among our young adults including Friday night gatherings, sports 
events, the Amazing Catholic Race and the Young Adults Soirée.  

 

5. In partnership with the 
Diocesan WYD Committee prepare for 
WYD 2008 and the legacy it will leave. 

 This is the first time WYD will be hosted in Oceania. It is an opportunity for the Church 
of New Zealand and of this entire region to participate in and be renewed by WYD in a 
way never before experienced. This event will call upon the entire Catholic community 
to step forward and share their potential with each other and with the international 
community. 

 WYD is actually a series of events culminating with the final Mass to be held Sunday July 20, 2008 in 
Sydney. There are two distinct parts to WYD that we will be directly covering in our preparation and 
organising:  
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“How can they call on Him if they have not come to believe in Him? 
And how can they believe in Him if they have never heard of Him? 
And how will they hear of Him unless there is preacher for them? 

And how will there be preachers if they are not sent? 
As scripture says: How beautiful are the feet of messenger of Good News.” 

Romans 10:14-15 

Pilgrimage 

 ‘The pilgrimage’ of young people aged 16-35 to 
Sydney in July 2008.  We are aiming to have at least 
1,200 pilgrims attend from New Zealand. Over 
1,200 young people fundraising, working and 
preparing for a pilgrimage such as this will have a 
profound and lasting effect on our parishes and 
schools.   

Days in the Diocese (DiD)  

 Hosting ‘Days in the Diocese’. Alongside our young 
people taking part is the opportunity for our pastoral 
areas, parishes and schools to host young people from 
every continent journeying towards Sydney. Until now 
DiD have remained the privilege solely of the host 
country; it is a gift that we can share this responsibility with 
Australia in 2008. 

 The Christchurch Diocese has employed Edmund le Grelle 
who is working full time in supporting parishes and schools so 
as many young people and young adults as possible can attend 
WYD. He is also working on inviting Dioceses from around the 
world to visit us prior to WYD. 

 Pope John Paul II gave the young people of the world a Cross and Icon 
of Our Lady. He asked them to carry them throughout the world as a sign 
of God’s love for humanity. The Cross and Icon spent four days travelling 
around our diocese visiting school and parishes. 

6. Supporting Directors of Religious Studies, Chaplains and Campus Ministers in our Catholic Schools. 

This was achieved by: 

 Offering DRS’s, chaplains, and campus ministers support that will provide their students with an 
opportunity to experience and/or develop Prayer and Worship, Evangelisation, Catechesis, Leadership 
Development. 

 Coordinating and presenting the year 11 retreat programme for all seven of our secondary schools.  
This retreat is provided for 500 young people by employing university students to assist us in 
facilitating the retreats. 

 Year 8 School Retreats were also provided for eight primary schools. 



The Mission: 

Conclusion  
With WYD in Sydney in 2008 we have been given an amazing opportunity to enliven the faith of the youth 
and young adults in this diocese. We look forward to the challenge and focus this will provide for both 
teams in the coming year. 

The Diocesan Youth Team are excited about supporting parishes, by providing opportunities for young 
people and young adults to gather together, grow in their faith and to support one another. Building leaders 
among our young people is a priority for the team. 
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Catholic Tertiary Chaplaincy  
This agency is located at Kolbe House in Rountree Street (across the road from the University of 
Canterbury). The Team comprises of: Vincent Chia (Coordinator until November 2006), Anna Burrowes 
and Kerren Flanagan (Tertiary Team Workers) with Father Frank Gan (until November 2006) and Father 
Ramiel Alvarez (from January 2007) as Priest Chaplain. 

The Vision: 

 To encourage the practice and growth of the Catholic faith among Catholic tertiary students.  

 To provide a gentle, persistent, growing, Catholic presence on campuses and, with God’s grace, to 
help others to come to faith, or return to faith. 

 To build a sense of community among Catholics on campus. 

Catholic Tertiary Chaplaincy includes the following institutions: 
 Canterbury University  Lincoln University 
 Christchurch College of Education  Christchurch Polytech 

The Vision was achieved by: 
 Over the last twelve months Catholic Tertiary Chaplaincy has provided a different range of services for 

the tertiary institutions that we manage. We said good-bye to Father Frank and welcomed Father 
Ramiel as the new Priest Chaplain. We also said good-bye to Vincent Chia who was the team’s 
coordinator. 

 Each week we have Mass at Polytech, Lincoln and Canterbury Universities followed by a shared lunch. 
This gives an opportunity for the team to meet the students and staff. Our day retreat at the Beatitude 
Community provided the opportunity to reflect on “What the Cross means in our lives today?”. The 
theme was based around the WYD Cross and Icon, to reflect on what Jesus is saying to me and asking 
for Mary to guide us along our path to her son. The WYD Cross and Icon at Rochester and Rutherford 
Hall brought together students and staff from all tertiary institutions. We shared an ecumenical service, 
after which both Cross and Icon were carried to Canterbury University, we concluded with communal 
prayer. This was a very blessed occasion which was enjoyed by all. 

 This year we celebrated our annual Academic Mass with Bishop John at Canterbury University. The 
evening was enjoyed by all with a delicious supper afterwards. We had our annual International Night 
learning about different cultures and a dance followed with yummy food. 

 This year has been an exciting year may the ministry continue for many years to come. 

The Catholic Tertiary Chaplaincy strives to 
build a Catholic Community in the Campus that is centred on the Eucharist. 

The Community is to be spirit-filled and constantly nourished 
by the Word of God so that it will become an 

evangelistic, serving, loving and welcoming Community. 



(The attached notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements) STATEMENT OF SERVICE PERFORMANCE 
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Catholic Tertiary Chaplaincy’s primary goal has been to develop as a witnessing community and provide 
opportunities for formation in the faith for those on campus. 

The Catholic Youth Team and the Catholic Tertiary Chaplaincy are both reliant on the work of leaders and 
volunteers - for which we are very thankful. We look forward to the year ahead and all it brings for 
ministry. 

2006   2007  2007  2008 
Actual   Budget  Actual  Budget 

   (Unaudited)    (Unaudited) 

'000   '000  '000  '000 
        

  Operating Income      
30  Grants and Donations 21  26  84 

2,141  Government Grants 2,229  2,320  2,428 
0  Investment Income 0  65  60 

827  Other Income 768  1,022  766 
2,998  Total 3,018  3,433  3,338 
        

  Less Expenditure      
511  Personnel Costs 614  607  676 

72  Consultancy 72  147  89 
678  Depreciation 719  653  634 
362  School Maintenance 100  333  100 
255  Interest on Loans 377  286  340 
312  Other 308  289  349 

2,190  Total 2,190  2,315  2,188 
        

808  Net Operating Surplus 828  1,118  1,150 
0  Non Operating Revenue 0  0  0 

808  Total Surplus recognised for period 828  1,118  1,150 
        

382  Internal Recoveries 413  413  436 
(438)  Less Internal Charges (461)  (478)  (503) 

(56)   (48)  (65)  (67) 
(309)  Net  Transfers (to)/from Special Funds (1,156)  (830)  177 

        

443  Net Operating Surplus/(Deficit)  (376)  223  1,260 
        

(1,770)  Capital Expenditure - Diocesan Schools (1,375)  (1,654)  (2,288) 
(24)  Capital Expenditure - Other (52)  (65)  (43) 

(1,794)  Total Capital Expenditure (1,427)  (1,719)  (2,331) 
595  Loan Principal Receipts 651  604  190 
(27)  Loan Principal Repayments 0  (154)  (55) 

        

(783)  Net (Deficit) (1,152)  (1,046)  (936) 
  (after internal transfers and capital expenditure)      

        

  Net Cost by Activity      
47  Catholic Eduction Office 39  39  31 
0  Attendance Dues (172)  0  7 

624  Diocesan Schools 715  460  1,559 
(186)  Youth and Young People (903)  (223)  (264) 
(42)  Tertiary Chaplaincy (55)  (53)  (73) 

0  CCJP 0  0  0 
443  Total Net Cost (376)  223  1,260 

Statement of Cost of Services - Ministry of the Word  
- For the Year Ending 30 June 2007 
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The Diocesan Welfare Council is an interesting body established by the Bishop with the 
principal objective to advise, support, train and encourage Catholics in their responsibility 
for the relief of human need: a major task but one Council members eagerly enter into. 
Those members, as at July 2006, were Father Kevin O’Grady, Chairman, (RIP) 20.09.06), 
Joan Doocey, Carey Haines, Brian Dilger, Sister Oliver Plunkett LCM, Lynda Macdonald. It 

was with regret that during the year Sister Oliver Plunkett LCM retired after many years of faithful service. 
Carey Haines has taken leave of absence due to work commitments and we eagerly await Carey’s return. 
Charlotte Boyes, Brian Cowan and Mary Caldwell became councillors and have been a welcome inclusion, 
broadening both the skills and experience available to Council. Donna Malone and Catherine Waller have 
significantly contributed by way of their administration to the work we have been able to achieve this year. 

During the year several Council members attended the Diocesan Governance Workshop and we have 
been able to more clearly understand our role in this aspect of God’s work. 

“The Celebration of Works” of welfare organisations within the Diocese included a debate in which well 
known personalities of Catholic origin participated. Unquestionably the debate was a wonderful piece of 
entertainment featuring Clayton Cosgrove, Megan Woods, our own Charlotte Boyes, Joe Ryan, Hayden 
Ryan (no relation to Joe), Tony Sewell (Ngai Tahu) and Lyndsay Freer (Catholic Communications), but the 
point of the whole exercise was to publicise Catholic welfare undertaken by at least 20 organisations, the 
work of many of them generally unknown by the Catholic population. It really worked well. The 
opportunity for parishes to take up the theme on an ongoing basis was recommended to parish councils 
and parish priests by way of information kits and suggestions which individual parishes could adopt at any 
time. This activity took up a lot of the available resources for the current year and will form the base of a 
similar activity which will grow upon this initiative, to be held every two years. 

Catholic Social Services continues to be the Council’s flagship and it continues very successfully. Catholic 
Social Services does not charge for its counselling which, given the quality of the professional and well 
qualified counsellors involved, almost gives an artificial presence within our almost totally commercial and 
money seeking world. The service in this way is very unique and well sought after from parishes, troubled 
families, schools (Catholic and non-Catholic), and other organisations, including Salvation Army. 

Well done yet again to Jon Brian, manager, and all the staff and volunteers for the work that you do. 

Once “The Celebration of Works” had concluded we were straight into the Tindall Foundation funding 
project. Once again, nearly $50,000 was distributed to organisations that were required to apply within 
certain criteria. A whole lot of organisations benefited, including Catholic Network of Marriage Educators, 
St John of God Waipuna, Women’s Refuge, Catholic Youth Team, Bishopdale Community Trust. At the 
time of going to print, we are about to receive a delegation from each organisation at Cathedral House 
who, over a cup of tea and some posh cake, will meet each other and explain the sort of things they will do 
with the money and their work generally. 

Ministry of Charity 
The principal work of this ministry is one of care, looking after people, concern about their well-
being, involving people, governing and communication. Some of this work is carried out at 
national level by agencies established under the umbrella of all the Catholic Bishops of Aotearoa 
New Zealand (the Bishops’ Conference). Caritas is an example of such an agency. Much of the 
work at diocesan level is undertaken under the auspices of the Diocesan Welfare Council, 
appointed by the Bishop, as an advisory body to the Bishop for questions of relief of human 
need, as the governing body of the Bishop’s Catholic Social Services Agency and as a facilitator, 
advisor, trainer and supporter to encourage Catholics at parish level in their responsibility for the 
relief of human need.  

The Diocesan Welfare Council 
From the Chairman - Murray Winder 

To
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Mother and Daughter enhancement 

This agency is located in Matthew Brodie House at 336 Cashel Street, Christchurch. 
The role of the Agency is to express the Church’s care for human life and values to the 
community, and its concern for the suffering many in our community have to 
constantly endure due to hardship, sickness or injustice. This is achieved through 

offering no cost professional services (counselling, family work, and group courses) to anyone who needs 
support, in a caring and meaningful way. Its focus is principally on: 

 Positive Parenting 

 Children and Youth 

 Adults 

 Support for couples and families 
from a strength based perspective, 
empowering clients to develop their full potential. 

Our highlights over the past year have been a constant increase in 
demand for services from the general public, as well as other 
professionals/organisations in our community. 

The Agency has been asked to provide education and therapy courses for the Oscar Network, Salvation 
Army, and Odyssey House and to provide supervision for Lifeline, the Catholic Youth Team and other 
professionals. 

Our response time has been optimised; the Agency never had a waiting list longer than four weeks with 
the provision for offering clients one-off appointments/assessments as needed and urgent appointments in 
case of crisis or other serious issues. 

The Agency operated within the approved budget and finished the year with a positive balance. The 
Agency staff have increased their weekly hours by thirteen hours per week in an endeavour to assist in 
service delivery. 

Our new location is more accessible for our client target group and our new premises obviously offer 
better conditions for therapy and our other services. 
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Catholic Social Services 
From the Manager - Jon Brian 

Mission  
“Catholic Social Services exists in the light 
of the Gospel and the teachings of the 
Catholic Church to foster human dignity 
through the provision of services that 
enable families and individuals to 
develop their full potential.” 
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Paddy Beban 
Diocesan Financial Administrator 

Jon Brian
Manager

Receptionist Cleaner

Supervising 
Social Worker 

Volunteers
Food Bank (7) 

Volunteers
Budget Advisors / Advocates (3) 

Counsellors / Social Workers 
(5) 

Organisational Structure  

Overview of legal, employment 
and financial matters 

Clinical Responsibility 

Objectives and Performance Measures  

1. To look at various forms of immediate relief of poverty, unemployment, distress and human need 
either alone or in collaboration with other Agencies and Organisations. 

 57 clients needed budgeting help and advocacy. 

 The Agency responded to 624 calls for food involving 860 adults and 602 children. 
 Another 60 families were helped over Christmas. 
 We were able to provide support with food for Christmas to 15 clients of other agencies. 

 Gifts were distributed for children to all who contacted the Agency asking for help. 

 315 brand new donated heaters were also distributed from this Agency or via other agencies like 
St Vincent de Paul Society etc. 

 16 families benefited from the holiday programme in Spencer Park. 

 17 families were helped with school uniforms and shoes. 

Volunteers give 
their time 
very freely. 

 
We are extremely 
grateful to them. 



2. To develop and carry out programmes of family 
assistance, providing support and guidance to assist 
families and individuals by developing and 
providing counselling and therapy. 

Counselling  

The agency had a very busy and rewarding year indeed: 

 2,818 face to face hours were recorded to 30 June 
2007, a 5% increase compared to last year’s figures. 

 517 new client files were opened during the same 
period compared to 463 the year before. 

 813 family members were recorded as directly 
involved with our counselling and social work 
services. 

 154 were solo parents 

 92% mothers parenting on their own 

 37 were stepfamily situations. 

 324 clients were under 10 years old and 
165 were aged 11 to 20 years. 

 63 client files dealt with addictions 

 69 addressed violence/abuse/neglect 

 57 clients needed budgeting help and advocacy. 

 96 clients presented mental health issues. 

 The agency accepted 76 client referrals from other 
agencies and professionals and 54 referrals from 
schools. 
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Ethnicity was recorded for 747 people: 

539 European 84 Maori 

63 Pacific Islands 61 ‘Other’ 

The ‘other’ category is mainly represented by the new migrant 
nationalities which will be itemised in our computer in the 
future as their numbers become more and more significant. 

 My counsellor helped me to 
understand what's going on with my life. 
I felt the spiritual guidance and the 
confidentiality is great. 
 

 My counsellor was extremely helpful 
to me, helping me sort out my own 
feelings and thoughts. It was easy to talk 
to her about things that I could not 
discuss with anyone else. I found her to 
be very professional in all ways - 
particularly concerned about my comfort. 
 

 I couldn't have asked more from my 
counsellor, she was awesome, in touch 
with reality and I felt she had a great 
affinity and understanding. 
 

 I learned a lot from my counsellor. 
I can now put these skills into practise.  
Very professional. 
 

 My counsellor was kind and always 
positive and always had answers. It was 
very professional. I knew that no one 
would judge you when you walked in. 

Children can express their feelings through drawings and play. 
This can show whether they are happy, sad, upset or angry.   



Some of these activities are self funding either from income generated from services or their own 
fundraising programmes authorised by NZCBC. Others are funded by a conference levy. 

The conference levy is based on Catholic diocesan population figures established from each census. The 
Christchurch Diocese share of the levy is 13.6%. This amounted to $112,675 during this reporting period. 

The New Zealand Catholic Bishops’ Conference (NZCBC) was set up to enable the six dioceses of the 
Catholic Church in New Zealand to act nationally, in a collaborative way in areas of common activity, in 
an effective and efficient manner. The Conference has an executive office sited in Wellington to coordinate 
its various activities.  

To provide overall administration of the NZCBC the nine bishops of New Zealand meet twice annually. 
The agenda for these meetings is very comprehensive, and is generally dealt with over a period of several 
very full days. 

The executive officer administers a number of agencies which carry out the policies and directives of 
NZCBC. These agencies are: 

 Catholic Communications  
 Handles media matters. 

 Caritas Aotearoa NZ  
 Fundraises for overseas aid. 

 National Centre for Religious Studies 
 Publishers of religious texts. 

 Nathaniel Bioethics Centre 
 Researches and teaches on bioethical issues. 

 Mahitahi People working together 
 Contracts people to aid Pacific Islands development. 

 Catholic Enquiry Centre 
 Encourages people interested in Catholicism. 

 Te Runanga 
 Outreach to the Maori people. 

 National Council for Young Catholics 
 Organises youth affairs. 

 Liturgy Commission 
 Deals with texts and rites of the Sacraments. 

 Ecumenism Commission 
 Involved in dialogue with other churches. 

 Canon Law Commission 
 Source of interpretation of Canon Law. 

 Mission Commission 
 Concerned with evangelisation beyond New Zealand. 

 National Tribunal 
 Church court applying Canon Law. 

New Zealand Bishops’ Conference 
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Phil has been in this key position since June 1998. 

Phil aims to deliver between five and seven full programmes, 
and some review programmes, each year. 

 

Everyone who is part of the Catholic Church in the Diocese of Christchurch is affected 
one way or another by a Thanksgiving Programme. 

 

Through the Thanksgiving Programme 
parishioners get the opportunity to 
participate in an activity that forms part of 
parish life. Visiting the homes of parishioners 
is a very important and fulfilling aspect of the 
programme. The impact and benefits of the 
home visiting is most valued by those who 
receive the visit. 

 

 
Our parishes are founded, grown and nurtured by the generosity of Christ’s faithful. It is easy to measure 
this generosity in money terms, indeed that is the way it is illustrated in the graph on the next page, 
because the modern parish has day to day financial commitments: it employs people for administrative and 
pastoral works: buildings and equipment need to be maintained, the Bishop through his Clergy Trust Fund, 
must provide for the living support of his priests, their health and their welfare. All of these things come at a 
financial cost. However the true measure of the success of the Thanksgiving Programme is based around 
engaging and encouraging people to be involved in parish and pastoral life. Such intangibles emerge as a 
strong sense of well being, gratitude: an experience of forgiveness and a desire for the common good6: 

 People are more willing to give themselves for the needs of God’s 
work, to feed the hungry and visit the sick, to be on committees and to 
assist with a whole range of parish needs. 

 People are more eager to be involved in liturgy. 

 People are more ready to open their hearts to the poor and the 
marginalised. 

Generally about seven programmes are delivered in parishes each year. The year just passed has seen only 
two programmes: at Riccarton and Kaiapoi Parishes. 
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Thanksgiving 
From the Thanksgiving Renewal Programme Director - Phil Gourdie 

6 Forming Generous Hearts, Leisa Anslinger and Victoria Sheep, 
Twenty Third Publications. 
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This lack of programmes and the significant window of 
unallocated time that created provided a new 
opportunity: to collaborate with the Trustees of the 
Christchurch Diocesan Foundation, referred to on 
page 59, to promote, increase membership and 
revitalise this significant contributor to the Bishop’s 
pastoral works. Such window has also provided 
opportunity to visit parishes, talk with priests and 
review and build a database to better understand the 
makeup of parishes: to plan for the future. 

Diocese 
Allocation 

15% 

Parish 
52% 

Clergy 
Support 

33% 

Where the 
parishioner’s 

donated dollar 
goes 

At the time of writing this report 2008 and 2009 will be busy 
years with flow over into 2010. 

Firm bookings for the programme are held from: 
Ashburton, Burwood, Cathedral, Dallington, Fairlie, 
Greymouth, Halswell, Hokitika, Lincoln, Papanui, 
Rangiora and Sockburn Parishes. 

The Diocese provides some subsidy on the costs of 
delivering the programmes whilst the parish meets the 
direct costs of promotion, printing and stationery. 

The cost of delivering parish programmes this reporting 
period was $81,607. Recoveries from parishes over that 
period amounted to $8,780. 

The Diocesan Giving Model  

Catholic Diocese of Christchurch Parish Collections  

Parish Collections 



INFORM, is a quarterly newsletter of the Catholic Bishop of 
Christchurch. Some 5,500 copies are distributed throughout the 
diocese, mostly through parishes. 

Father Mike Doyle is the incumbent editor.  

The paper gathers together news from around the Diocese as 
well as a leading article from the Bishop. 

Dame Betty O’Dowd has regularly contributed a theological 
column at the invitation of the Bishop. 

The net cost of this publication during the financial year was 
$8,393. 

The provisions in the late Miss ZM 
Armstrong’s will, dated 2nd November 1982, 
established a charitable trust “The ZM 
Armstrong Charitable Trust”. The Bishop is the 
beneficiary of the Trust for his work among the 
aged in the “province of Canterbury”. 

Up until 1995 very few distributions had been 
requested by the Bishops for the time being and 
some $265,000 had accumulated. In 1999 six single 
units out of a planned 22 were constructed in Milton 
Street, Christchurch, adjacent to Nazareth House, 
providing low cost housing accommodation to the aged 
in need. Subsequent annual distributions from the Trust 
have been accumulated in anticipation of a further 
building programme which will be considered during the 
next reporting period. 

The Society of Mary Trust Board built the equivalent of an 
additional five single units for retired members of the Society 
of Mary religious order. This arrangement is recorded in a 
formal agreement between the Bishop and the Trust Board. 
The agreement provides for an annual financial contribution 
to the running and administration of the village and for the 
units to revert to the ownership of the Bishop, when they are 
no longer required by the Trust Board, and be available for 
other purposes consistent with the intent of Miss ZM Armstrong.   

The current cost of operating the village amounted to $85,358 
during the reporting period. 

Inform 
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Armstrong Village 



Statement of Cost of Services - Ministry of Charity  
- For the Year Ending 30 June 2007 
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2006   2007  2007  2008 
Actual   Budget  Actual  Budget 

   (Unaudited)    (Unaudited) 

'000   '000  '000  '000 

        
  Operating Income      

673  Grants and Donations 443  469  381 
69  Government Grants 80  94  34 

226  Other Income 735  411  211 
968  Total 1,258  974  626 

        
  Less Expenditure      

426  Personnel Costs 440  440  488 
11  Consultancy 9  14  11 
25  Depreciation 17  27  19 

339  Other 399  415  379 
801  Total 865  896  897 

        
167  Net Operating Surplus 393  78  (271) 

0  Non Operating Revenue 0  0  0 
        

167  Total Surplus recognised for period 393  78  (271) 
        

85  Internal Recoveries 86  68  46 
(320)  Less Internal Charges (260)  (276)  (242) 
(235)   (174)  (208)  (196) 

        
(314)  Net  Transfers (to)/from Special Funds (60)  (103)  (37) 

        
(382)  Net Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 159  (233)  (504) 

        
(792)  Capital Expenditure (109)  (234)  (130) 

  Loan Principal Receipts 0    0 
  Loan Principal Repayments      

        
(1,174)  Net Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 50  (467)  (634) 

  (after internal transfers and capital expenditure)      
        
        
  Net Cost by Activity      

47  Welfare - Catholic Social Services 51  115  (76) 
(2)  Welfare - Other (4)  0  18 

(225)  Governance 314  (133)  (241) 
(106)  Bishop's Conference (124)  (113)  (115) 

(4)  Catholic Shop 0  1  (11) 
(10)  Tribunal (10)  (13)  (12) 
(75)  Thanks Giving (61)  (82)  (59) 
(7)  Inform (7)  (8)  (8) 

(382)  Total Net Cost 159  (233)  (504) 
        



Overhead Activities 
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Paddy Beban 
Diocesan Financial Administrator 

Personal 
Assistant 

Janice Rennell 
Finance Manager 

Reception 
Staff (2) 

Diocesan 
Accountant 

Thanksgiving 
Programme Advisor 

CDF 
Promotions Officer 

Accounts 
Clerk 

Senior Accounts Clerk / 
CDF Customer Services Officer 

It is always intended to report on this function, as an important part of the accountability process, even 
though all overhead costs are fully recovered from the activities supported. Administration is not a function 
in its own right. It exists merely to support work within the ministries and the functions that provide income 
to support that work, such as property development and financial investment. 

Organisational Structure  

Investment  
All cash investments of the Bishop are managed by Goldman Sachs JB Were (NZ) Ltd under an advisory 
arrangement, according to an investment allocation policy authorised by the Management and Finance 
Board and the Christchurch Catholic Diocesan Development Fund from time to time. 

Investment income provided a net return of $1,460,988 (including the CDF distribution) during the 
reporting period. 

Property  
In previous annual reports comments have been made about plans to sub-divide land at Rolleston. 
Planning for the construction of the sub-division is now well underway. The development involves 91 lots 
with the first stage comprising 61 lots. A contract has been let to KB Contracting & Quarries Ltd for this first 
stage. Eliot Sinclair & Partners Ltd is both engineer and project manager, and Cavell Leitch Law legal 
advisors to the project. These three companies were the successful core team that provided services to the 
Diocese during the development and construction of Bishops Green at Halswell. Kennard Real Estate Ltd 
has been engaged to market and sell this first stage. 

The name of the development is “Catherine fields” 
after Catherine Grimes; the sister of the first bishop 
of the Christchurch Diocese. The street names; 
Henley Close, after Patrick Henley who 
describes himself in memoirs recorded late in 
his life, as the foster-father of the Church in 
Christchurch later gifted a portion of his land at 
the corner of what is now Shands and 
Boundary Roads to establish “New Headford” 
the first church on the plains and Duggan Close 
after Eileen Duggan, the New Zealand poet 
whose religious faith formed a vital part of her 
poetic vision. 

At the time of writing this report some 58 lots 
from the first stage have been sold conditional upon title availability in March 2008. Contracts for the final 
construction stage of 30 lots have been entered into with the same parties involved in stage one. 



Statement of Cost of Services - Overhead Activities  
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2006   2007  2007  2008 
Actual   Budget  Actual  Budget 

   (Unaudited)    (Unaudited) 

'000   '000  '000  '000 

        
  Operating Income      

91  Grants and Donations 60  97  202 
505  Allocations 519  519  540 

1,670  Investment Income 1,367  2,039  1,902 
2,791  Other Income 3,270  95  4,533 
5,057  Total 5,216  2,750  7,177 

        
  Less Expenditure      

550  Personnel Costs 514  511  525 
141  Consultancy 82  193  214 

90  Depreciation 34  58  45 
0  Interest on Loans 117  0  0 

170  Other 329  207  291 
951  Total 1,076  969  1,075 

        
        

4,106  Net Operating Surplus 4,140  1,781  6,102 
271  Non Operating Revenue 3,976  297  276 

        
4,377  Total Surplus recognised for period 8,116  2,078  6,378 

        
750  Internal Recoveries 594  654  660 

(373)  Less Internal Charges (297)  (303)  (315) 
377   297  351  345 

        
(3,015)  Net  Transfers (to)/from Special Funds (325)  (140)  (1,515) 

        
1,739  Net Surplus (after internal transfers) 8,088  2,289  5,208 

        
(295)  Capital Expenditure (3,760)  (258)  (3,113) 

0  Loan Principal Receipts 0  0  0 
0  Loan Principal Repayments (2,821)  0  0 

        
1,444  Net Surplus  1,507  2,031  2,095 

  (after internal transfers and capital expenditure)      
        
  Net Cost by Activity      

0  Diocesan Financial Administrator 0  0  0 
0  Cathedral House Building 0  0  0 

(12)  Other Diocesan Properties 6,501  22  3,012 
0  Administration (11)  0  0 
0  Insurance (1)  0  0 

789  Other Income 764  806  907 
962  Investment Income 830  1,461  1,289 

1,739  Total Net Cost 8,083  2,289  5,208 
        



Chartered Accountants  

To the Roman Catholic Bishop of Christchurch 
We have audited the financial statements on pages 16, 27, 36, 38 and 40 to 53. The financial statements 
provide information about the past financial performance of the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch (the Diocese) 
and its financial position as at 30 June 2007. This information is stated in accordance with the accounting 
policies set out on pages 44 to 46. 

This report is made solely to the Bishop, as a corporation sole, in accordance with the Roman Catholic Bishop’s 
Empowering Act 1997 and other relevant legislation by which the Bishop is governed. Our audit has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Bishop those matters we are required to state to him in an auditor's 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the Bishop as a corporation sole, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 
opinions we have formed. 

Diocesan Management and Finance Board’s Responsibilities 
The Diocesan Management and Finance Board are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which 
comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and fairly present the financial position of 
the Diocese as at 30 June 2007 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Auditor's Responsibilities 
It is our responsibility to express an independent opinion on the financial statements presented by the Diocesan 
Management and Finance Board and report our opinion to you. 

Basis of Opinion 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  It also includes assessing: 
 the significant estimates and judgements made by the Diocesan Management and 

Finance Board in the preparation of the financial statements; and 
 whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the 

Diocese, consistently applied and adequately disclosed. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in New Zealand. We 
planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered 
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements are free from material misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.  In forming our opinion we 
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. 

Other than in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship with, or interest in, the Catholic Diocese of 
Christchurch. 

Qualified Opinion 
We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required. 

As stated in the Property, Plant and Equipment Policy of Note 1, Statement of Accounting Policies, Land and 
Buildings have been revalued at the latest government valuations. Also, the note states depreciation has not 
been charged on the revalued buildings. These are departures from Financial Reporting Standard - 3, Accounting 
for Property, Plant and Equipment (“FRS 3”). In accordance with FRS 3 revalued land and buildings are required 
to be revalued to fair value, and depreciation is required to be charged on revalued buildings. We are unable to 
quantify the difference should depreciation have been charged as the valuation basis is not in line with FRS 3 
and therefore this estimate would not be reliable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of the departures from FRS - 3 as outlined above, the financial statements on 
pages 16, 27, 36, 38 and 40 to 53: 
 comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 
 fairly present the financial position of the Diocese as at 30 June 2007 

and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Our audit was completed on 28 September 2007 and our qualified opinion is expressed as at that date. 

Christchurch 

Auditor’s Report 
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Statement of Financial Position - As at 30 June 2007  

Financial Statements 

Catholic Diocese of Christchurch 2007 Annual Report 40 
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For and on behalf of the Management and Finance Board, which authorised the issue of the financial 
report on 28 September 2007. 
 
 
 

+ Barry Jones G Bailey 
Roman Catholic Bishop of Christchurch Chairman 

   30 June  30 June 
   2007  2006 
 Notes  '000  '000 

      
Current Assets      
  Cash and Bank Balances   1,169  578 
  Receivables and Prepayments 2  613  530 
  Stock on Hand   25  25 
  Current Portion Investments 3  12,902  12,343 
Total Current Assets   14,709  13,476 

      
      

Non Current Assets      
  Investments 3  7,283  6,556 
  Property, Plant and Equipment 4  40,045  39,065 
Total Non Current Assets   47,328  45,621 

      
      

Current Liabilities      
  Accounts Payable and Accruals 5  722  953 
  Income in Advance   0  98 
  Current Portion of Non Current Liabilities 6  389  397 
Total Current Liabilities   1,111  1,448 

      
      

Non Current Liabilities 6  3,378  3,380 
      
      

Net Assets   57,548  54,269 
      
      
      

Total Equity 7  57,548  54,269 
      



Statement of Movements in Equity - For the Year Ending 30 June 2007  
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    2007  2006 
  Notes  Actual  Actual 
    '000  '000 

       
       

Opening Equity   54,269  47,813 
       

Net Operating Surplus for the period   3,161  4,910 
       

Other Recognised Revenues and Expenses      
Increases/(Decreases) in Revaluation Reserves      
 Property (Land & Buildings)   0  1,035 

 Property under Development   0  (483) 
 Shares   131  394 
    131  946 
       

Total Recognised Revenues and Expenses      
 For the Period   3,292  5,856 

       
Disbursement of Special Purpose Bequest Funds 7  (13)  0 
Realised Property Revaluations 4  0  600 

       
Closing Equity 7  57,548  54,269 

       



Statement of Financial Performance - For the Year Ending 30 June 2007  
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2006    2007  2007  2008 
Actual   Notes Budget  Actual  Budget 

    (Unaudited)    (Unaudited) 

'000    '000  '000  '000 

         
  Operating Income       

996  Grants and Donations  711  1,073  816 
505  Allocations  519  519  540 

2,210  Government Grants 8 2,309  2,414  2,462 
1,670  Investment Income  1,367  2,104  1,962 
4,072  Other Income 9 4,940  1,741  5,661 
9,453  Total  9,846  7,851  11,441 

         
  Less Expenditure       

1,727  Personnel Costs  1,888  1,897  2,058 
228  Consultancy  173  369  324 
803  Depreciation  785  756  707 
362  School Maintenance  100  333  100 
280  Interest on Loans  364  289  340 

1,414  Other  1,522  1,343  1,439 
4,814  Total  4,832  4,987  4,968 

         
4,639  Net Operating Surplus  5,014  2,864  6,473 

271  Non Operating Revenue 10 4,627  297  466 
         

4,910  Total Surplus recognised for period 13 9,641  3,161  6,939 
         

1,217  Internal Recoveries  1,093  1,135  1,148 
(1,217)  Less Internal Charges  (1,093)  (1,135)  (1,148) 

0    0  0  0 
         

(3,569)  Net  Transfers (to)/from Special Funds  (1,500)  (1,094)  (1,355) 
         

1,341  Net Surplus (after internal transfers) 11 8,141  2,067  5,584 
         

(2,894)  Capital Expenditure 12 (5,320)  (2,257)  (5,578) 
595  Loan Principal Receipts  0  604  0 

(167)  Loan Principal Repayments  (3,101)  (293)  (55) 
         

(1,125)  Net Surplus (Deficit)  (280)  121  (49) 
  (after internal transfers and capital expenditure)      

         
  Net Cost by Activity       

(459)  Ministry of Liturgy  (381)  (212)  (570) 
443  Ministry of the Word  275  223  1,450 

(382)  Ministry of Charity  159  (233)  (504) 
1,739  Overheads  8,088  2,289  5,208 
1,341  Total Net Cost  8,141  2,067  5,584 
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        2007  2006 
      Note   '000    '000  

           
 Cash Flows From Operating Activities        
  Cash was provided from:         
   Grants and Donations Received     1,073  996 

   Allocations Received       519  505 
   Government Grants Received     2,316  2,210 
   Investment Income Received     2,061  2,197 
   Net GST Received      43  0 
   Other Income Received      1,532  1,083 
        7,544  6,991 
           
  Cash was applied to:         

   Payments to employees and suppliers    3,920  3,665 
   Interest Paid       289  280 
   Net GST Payments      0  177 
        4,209  4,122 
           

 Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) From Operating Activities  13  3,335  2,869 
           

 Cash Flows From Investing Activities        
  Cash was provided from:         
   Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment    587  5,756 

        587  5,756 
  Cash was applied to:         

   Acquisition of  Property, Plant & Equipment    2,461  2,803 
   Increase in Investments      1,168  6,278 
        3,629  9,081 
           

 Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) From Investing Activities    (3,042)  (3,325) 
           

 Cash Flows From Financing Activities        
  Cash was provided from:         
   Advance of Term Liabilities     604  595 

        604  595 
  Cash was applied to:         

   Repayment of Term Liabilities     293  163 
   Disbursement of Special Reserves     13  0 
        306  163 
           

 Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) From Financing Activities    298  432 
           

 Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash Funds     591  (24) 
           

 Cash balance as at 1 July 2006     578  602 
           

 Cash balance as at 30 June 2007     1,169  578 
           

 This total is recorded in the financial statements as:       
 Bank Accounts      1,169  578 

           



1. Statement of Accounting Policies  

Reporting Entity  

These financial statements relate to the administration function and other prime responsibilities of the 
Roman Catholic Bishop of the Diocese of Christchurch. There are other assets which, are owned by the 
Roman Catholic Bishop of the Diocese of Christchurch as a corporation sole, for example, parishes and 
schools which are not included in these financial statements, except for secondary schools' land and 
buildings which have been recorded together with their corresponding loans. 

The financial statements of the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch are a general purpose report which has 
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in New Zealand. 

Measurement Base 

The accounting principles recognised as appropriate for the measurement and reporting of financial 
performance and financial position on an historical cost basis have been followed by the Diocese with the 
exception that certain assets have been revalued as specified below. 

Specific Accounting Policies 

The following specific policies, which materially affect the measurement of financial performance and 
financial position, have been applied: 

a) Differential Reporting 

The Catholic Diocese of Christchurch qualifies for differential reporting because it is not publicly 
accountable and the Roman Catholic Bishop of the Diocese of Christchurch is corporation sole under 
The Roman Catholic Bishops' Empowering Act 1997. The Bishop is the beneficial owner and 
governing body for the diocese. Differential reporting has been applied in respect of SSAP 17: 
Investment Properties and Properties Intended for Sale, FRS 31: Disclosure of Information about 
Financial Instruments, SSAP 23: Financial Reporting for Segments, SSAP 22: Related Party Disclosures 
and FRS 3: Accounting for Property, Plant and Equipment. 

b) Goods and Services Tax 

These financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis except for Receivables and 
Payables in the Statement of Financial Position, which are recorded at their GST inclusive values. 

c) Income Tax 

The Catholic Diocese of Christchurch is exempt from income taxation under the provisions of section 
CB4 of the Income Tax Act 1994. 

d) Revenue Recognition 

Gifts, donations and bequests are recorded as income for the year in which they are received. 
Property Sales are recognised at the date of settlement. 

e) Cash 

For the purposes of reporting cash in the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand, deposits 
held at call with banks and investments in money market instruments, which are used as part of day to 
day cash management. 

Notes to the Accounts 
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f) Receivables 

Receivables are stated at their estimated realisable value. 

g) Stock on Hand 

Stock on Hand represents Diocesan stationery and Catholic Shop stock on hand as at balance date. 
Stock on hand is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, determined on a first in, first out 
basis. 

h) Investments 

Investments (excluding shares) are stated at cost, excluding the amortised portion of any premium or 
discount that may apply. 

The investment in the Catholic Development Fund has been reflected in the financial statements on an 
equity accounting basis, which shows the Catholic Diocese’s share of surplus in the statement of 
financial performance and the increase in net assets, in the statement of financial position. 

i) Shares 

Shares have been recorded at market value as at balance date. Movements in the market value of 
shares have been recorded in a share revaluation reserve. Where there is a debit balance in the share 
revaluation reserve this is written off in the statement of financial performance, unless considered to be 
a temporary diminishment in value only. 

j) Property, Plant & Equipment (including Property Under Development) 

Property, Plant and Equipment except land & buildings and land under development have been 
recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Land and buildings, including land under 
development, are valued at the latest Government valuation on a cyclical basis. Additions and 
development expenditure since the last valuation are recorded at cost. 

k) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis on all property, plant and equipment except land & 
buildings and property under development, which have been revalued. School improvements funded 
by monies received from the Ministry of Education for education capital works and maintenance are 
depreciated over a period of between 5 and 60 years. Depreciation rates have been calculated to 
allocate the asset’s cost over the asset's estimated useful life. 

The estimated useful lives for the major asset classes are: 
Computer Software 3 Years 
Electronic Office Equipment 3 Years 
Other Office Furniture & Equipment 20 Years 
Motor Vehicles 4  Years 
Alterations 10 Years 
School Improvements 5 - 60 Years  

l) Foreign Currencies   

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the New Zealand rate of exchange ruling at the date 
of the transaction. 

At balance date foreign monetary assets are translated at the closing rate, and exchange variations 
arising from these translations are recognised in the statement of financial performance. 
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2. Receivables and Prepayments  

3. Investments  
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  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 

      
Trade & Other Debtors 275 157 
Related Party Debtors 0 21 
Interest Receivable 263 207 
GST Receivable 26 94 
Prepayments 49 51 

Total 613 530 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    

  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 

      
Bank Deposits 0 2 
Catholic Development Fund Deposits 9,389 8,386 
Bonds & Notes 5,710 5,459 
Mortgage 0 900 
Loans 21 21 
Catholic Development Fund Equity (see Note 14) 1,560 1,508 
Shares 3,505 2,623 
Total 20,185 18,899 
      
Less Current Portion (12,902) (12,343) 
Total Non Current Investments 7,283 6,556 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

The Market value of Bonds and Notes as at 30 June 2007 is $5,662,936.  (2006 - $5,676,437)  

m) Suspensory Loans 

Suspensory Loans in respect of diocesan secondary schools have been recorded at their historic value 
less the proportion of the loan forgiven by the Government to date. Suspensory Loans are forgiven over 
a twenty-five year period from the date that the loans were originally advanced. 

n) Changes in accounting policies 

There have been no changes in accounting policies. 



4. Property, Plant & Equipment  

Catholic Diocese of Christchurch 2007 Annual Report 47 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(including Property under Development)  

30 June 2007 
Cost or 

Revaluation 
Current 

Yr Depn. 
Accum 
Depn. 

Book 
Value 

  '000 '000 '000 '000 
          

Land (at valuation) 7,040 0 0 7,040 
Land Under Development (at Valuation) 906 0 0 906 
Buildings (at valuation) 21,286 0 0 21,286 
Land and Buildings (Work in Progress) 605 0 0 605 
  29,837 0 0 29,837 
          

Alterations (at cost) 592 10 186 406 
  592 10 186 406 
          

Furniture & Equipment (at cost) 504 94 358 146 
Motor Vehicles (at cost) 341 62 172 169 
School Improvements (at cost) 10,939 590 2,390 8,549 
School Improvements (Work in progress) 938     938 
  12,722 746 2,920 9,802 
          

Total 43,151 756 3,106 40,045 

30 June 2006 
Cost or 

Revaluation 
Current 

Yr Depn. 
Accum 
Depn. 

Book 
Value 

  '000 '000 '000 '000 
          

Land (at valuation) 7,742 0 0 7,742 
Buildings (at valuation) 21,518 0 0 21,518 
Land and Buildings (Work in Progress) 614 0 0 614 
  29,874 0 0 29,874 
          

Alterations (at cost) 592 4 175 417 
  592 4 175 417 
          

Furniture & Equipment (at cost) 429 122 283 146 
Motor Vehicles (at cost) 347 69 220 127 
School Improvements (at cost) 9,239 608 1,800 7,439 
School Improvements (Work in progress) 1,062 0   0 1,062 
  11,077 799 2,303 8,774 
          

Total 41,543 803 2,478 39,065 

     

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Land and Buildings (including land under development) have been valued at latest Government Valuation 
as at September 2004 except for Roncalli College (September 2006), Leeston and Rolleston land 
(September 2003) and John Paul II High School (September 2003). Additions since valuation are recorded 
at cost. 



7. Equity  

5. Accounts Payable and Accruals  

6. Non Current Liabilities  
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Land and buildings contained in fixed assets to the value of $176,000 have been donated for specific use 
as a tertiary chaplaincy centre. Should the Diocese cease to use the building for the purpose specified in 
the original terms of the donation, ownership of the building will revert to the previous owners. Diocesan 
management consider the likelihood of this occurring to be remote. 

  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 

      
Creditors & Accruals 378 594 
Employee Entitlements 186 155 
Other Current Liabilities 158 204 
Total 722 953 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Pre-Suspensory and Suspensory Loans are secured over school land and buildings. The majority of the 
Other Loans and Mortgages are unsecured, being in respect of properties owned by the Catholic Diocese.  

Pre-Suspensory loans are with Ichthus Limited. The interest rate is 7.5% p.a. These loans will be repaid by 
the year 2013. 

Suspensory Loans are forgiven by the Government over a twenty-five year period; these loans are interest 
free and will be forgiven by the year 2023. Loans forgiven in 2007 amounted to $185,089.     

Other Loans are held with the Catholic Development Fund. The current interest rates on these loans vary 
from 0% p.a. to 8.5% p.a.  

  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 

      
Pre-Suspensory Loans 325 437 
Suspensory Loans 1,856 2,040 
Other Loans 1,272 962 
Future GST Liability 314 338 
Total 3,767 3,777 
      
Less Current Portion (389) (397) 
Total Non Current Liabilities 3,378 3,380 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Equity is made up of general equity, special purpose funds and revaluation reserves.  The special purpose 
funds result from: 

 bequests that have restrictions over their use; 
 contractual funding for specific purposes; 
 decisions taken by the Diocesan Management and Finance Board 

to set funds aside for a specific purpose.  

During the year $13,000 of these funds were disbursed. 

Sufficient cash and investment balances are retained to cover these special purpose funds. 
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Equity  2007  2006 
  '000  '000 
    

General Equity 25,783  23,737 
Special Purpose Funds 13,083  11,981 
Revaluation Reserves 18,682  18,551 
    

Total Equity 57,548  54,269 

    
Special Purpose Funds   2007  2006 
 ‘000  ‘000 

    

Education - Diocesan School Capital & Maintenance Programme 2,266  1,336 
Education - Attendance Dues 188  165 
Education - General 484  480 
Youth 39  39 
Youth & Education 104  101 
Catholic Social Services 741  645 
Pastoral - Missionary 69  67 
Pastoral - Ongoing Formation, Education & Seminary 880  855 
Aged Care - Armstrong Village 636  554 
Bishop's Capital Health Fund (90% Income distributed to Clergy Health Fund) 177  176 
Gamblins Rd (Income distributed to Cathedral College Proprietors Trust Board) 1,018  1,018 
CCJP 14  13 
Darfield Parish 97  91 
Chatham Island Parish 14  16 
Bishops Green Property Reserve 6,164  6,317 
Cathedral Music 57  0 
Other 135  108 
    

Total Special Purpose Funds 13,083  11,981 

    
Revaluation Reserves  2007  2006 
 ‘000  ‘000 

    

Property Revaluation Reserve      
Opening Balance 17,968  16,933 
Movement during the year 0  1,035 
Closing Balance 17,968  17,968 
       
Property under Development Revaluation Reserve      
Opening Balance 0  483 
Movement during the year 0  (483) 
Closing Balance 0  0 
       
Share Revaluation Reserve      
Opening Balance 583  189 
Movement during the year 131  394 
Closing Balance 714  583 



10. Non Operating Income  

8. Government Grants  

9. Other Income  

11. Net Operating Surplus/(Deficit)  
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Government Grants are received from the Ministry of Education for major capital and maintenance work to 
be undertaken within the Diocesan schools; and from the Child Youth and Family service for foster care 
and other services provided by Catholic Social Services. 

  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 
      

Education (Attendance Dues, Religious Education 
Fees & Foreign Fee Paying Students) 779 758 
Catholic Shop Sales 153 144 
Cathedral Trust 27 29 
Prison Chaplaincy Service 54 50 
Programmes & Events (Youth & Education) 32 20 
Gain on Property Sales 99 2,989 
Other Income 597 82 

Total 1,741 4,072 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    

Non Operating Income includes items of a non operating nature and is separately disclosed so as not to 
distort the results from normal operating activities. Non operating revenue is made up of the reduction in 
school loans and the amount forgiven on suspensory loans during the financial year. 

  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 

After Charging:     
Auditor's Fees - Audit Fees 10 9 
Auditor's Fees – Other Services 2 0 
Donations Expense 3 3 
Interest Expense 289 280 
Lease Expense 0 8 
Bad Debts Written Off 0 21 
Provision for Doubtful Debts 21 (82) 
Loss on Sale of Assets 0 4 
      
Including:     
Interest Revenue 1,093 951 
Dividend Revenue 121 71 
Gain on Sale of Assets 113 2,989 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



12. Capital Expenditure  
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  2007 2006 
  '000 '000 
      

Diocesan Schools 1,652 1,768 
Land & Buildings 404 787 
Property Under Development 0 276 
Computer Equipment 70 39 
Vehicles 116 13 
Other Plant & Equipment 15 11 

  2,257 2,894 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
    

13. Reconciliation of Net Surplus with Cash flows from Operating Activities    

  2007   2006 
   '000    '000 

 Net Surplus 3,161   4,910 

 Add/(Less) Non Cash Items:       

 Depreciation 756   803 
 Non  Operating Revenue (Loans forgiven) (297)   (271) 
 (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Asset (109)   (2,985) 
 Asset Write Downs 0   (10) 
 Amortisation of Investment Discount/Premium 13   15 
  3,524   2,462 
        
 Movements in Other Working Capital Items:       
 Decrease/(Increase) in Prepayments 2   (3) 
 Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable (152)   532 
 Decrease/(Increase) in Stock 0   3 
 Decrease/(Increase) in GST Receivable 43   (177) 
  

 Decrease/(Increase) in GST Payable -   - 
 (Decrease)/Increase in Accounts Payable (262)   310 
 (Decrease)/Increase in Holiday Pay 31   10 
 (Decrease)/Increase in Income in Advance (98)   (20) 

  (436)   
               

655 
        
(Decrease)/Increase in 
Fixed Assets in Accounts Payable 247   (248) 
  247   (248) 
 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 3,335   2,869 
        



14. Catholic Development Fund  

15. Related Party Transactions  

16. Contingent Liabilities  
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The Catholic Development Fund (CDF) is a charitable Trust that is administered by the Catholic Diocese. It 
provides a facility for investors to deposit funds, and a loan facility for Catholic objectives.  The investment 
in the CDF has been reflected in the financial statements on an equity accounting basis, on the basis that 
the Diocese has the capacity to affect, but not unilaterally control, the operating activities of the fund.    

The Roman Catholic Bishop of the Diocese of Christchurch provides a guarantee in respect of depositors 
funds placed with the Catholic Development Fund. The likelihood of this guarantee being called is 
considered to be remote. 

Catholic Development Fund 2007 2006 
  '000 '000 
  (31 March) (31 March) 
      

Surplus 552 380 
      

Distribution to Diocese 500 360 
      

Retained Surplus 52 20 
      
      
Diocese Investment in CDF: (30 June) (30 June) 

Opening Carrying Amount 1,508 1,488 
      

Closing Carrying Amount 1,560 1,508 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

    

The Catholic Diocese of Christchurch invests funds in the Catholic Development Fund. The Diocese 
provides assistance to the Fund in managing its day to day operations.  In October 2002 the Management 
and Finance Board of the Diocese resolved to stop charging the Fund for these services.  An annual 
distribution was received from the Fund. Interest on deposits is received from and interest on loans has 
been paid to the Fund.  No debts were forgiven or written off during the period.    

During the year, the Catholic Diocese purchased the professional services of McKay, Bailey Butchard Ltd. 
Mr Geoff Bailey, a partner of McKay, Bailey Butchard, is a board member of the Diocesean Board of 
Management and Finance.  The Diocese purchased $5,077 worth of professional services during the 
2006/2007 financial year. 

A contingent liability exists in respect of suspensory loans, which become repayable to the extent of any 
outstanding balance on a loan if a school closes before the loan is forgiven. The contingent liability as at 30 
June 2007 was $2,473,232 (2006: $2,685,897) in respect of primary school loans. Diocesan secondary 
school loans of $1,851,997 (2006: $2,040,050) are recorded as a liability in the balance sheet. The 
likelihood of any schools closing is considered remote. 

The Diocese has received notice of possible claims relating to associated entities. The Diocese is presently 
discussing these claims with their legal advisors. The financial effect is unable to be quantified.  
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17. Capital Commitments  

18. Events Subsequent to Balance Date  

As at 30 June 2007 there are capital commitments for the following: 

  2007  2006 
  '000 

  
 '000 

School Improvements 237  259 
Bishops Residence 0  56 

Total Amount 237  315 
    

There have been no events subsequent to balance date to report. 

19. Comparative Figures  

During the year the activities of Hospital Chaplaincy and Prison Chaplaincy were reclassified to ‘Ministry of 
Liturgy’ from ‘Ministry of Charity’.  The comparative figures for 2006 have been restated accordingly.  

20. Impact of Adopting NZ IFRS Equivalents to IASB Standards  

The Accounting Standards Review Board is implementing the policy of adopting the Standards of the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). These will be New Zealand International Financial 
Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and will apply to the Diocese reporting periods from 1 July 2007. 

Adoption of NZ IFRS standards in 2008 is expected to have significant impacts on the accounting policies 
of reporting entities and their reported financial standards and financial performance. The Diocese is 
currently assessing the major impacts that the transition to NZ IFRS will have. The key differences expected 
to arise from the adoption of NZ IFRS are currently unknown, but are likely to predominantly affect the 
valuation and reporting of investments, and Property, Plant and Equipment. Actual results may be different 
from those presented. The Diocese is unable to provide an estimate of the variations between NZ GAAP 
and NZ IFRS, however the variations may be material.  



Principles  

The New Zealand Catholic Bishops’ Conference has adopted a range of employment policies based on 
equity and justice principles. The Code of Canon Law talks about “principles taught by the Church, the 
civil laws relating to labour and social life” and “a just and honest wage”. These policies are very much 
aligned with “equal employment opportunity” as we understand that term. The Diocese is committed to 
such policies. 

A very important part of the workforce of the Diocese and the parishes that form the Diocese is the 
involvement of volunteers. The Bishop and his agencies simply could not function without this generous 
input. Bishop John and Bishop Barry thank all of those who give of their time so willingly and freely. 

The involvement of volunteers in our work also places significant responsibilities on those that engage 
volunteers to ensure that they are asked only to undertake tasks that are within their capability, to ensure 
that they are adequately supervised and supported and on those that volunteer to ensure that they 
understand and respect the rules of engagement and the values of the organisation and colleagues that they 
work for and alongside. 

The New Zealand Catholic Bishops’ Conference has issued model guidelines for the engagement of 
volunteers. The Diocese is committed to these guidelines. 

Our People 
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Overview of legal, employment and financial matters 
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Female 

Male 

Resignations 

Current Employee Information  

Of 45 employees  (36.857 FTE’s) 27% are male and 63% female. 

Female employees fill one third of senior management positions. 
 
  
 
Training Development  

The Diocese has a commitment to providing training opportunities to staff to complement their professional 
development and contribute to their effectiveness as employees. Such opportunities include study leave, 
examination leave, and attendance at conferences, seminars and workshops. 

Health and Safety  

No time was lost due to workplace accidents. Sick leave amounted to approximately 1,105 hours or 
around 1.3% of total available work time. 

Staff Retention  

Four resignations were received during the year. Three were filled in an open advertising process. It was 
decided to contract in services for the remaining position. 
 
  
 
  
Employee retention was around 91.1%. 



It is in the physical environment that the Diocese has much to contribute. Many of its churches form such a 
valuable part of the heritage fabric of communities. The Diocese through its parishes and with increasing 
support from local communities, City and District Councils, Community Trusts and the Lottery Grants 
Board, has done much to maintain and preserve its significant buildings. 

In the people environment the Diocese does much to reflect the teachings of Christ, in the way we care, 
the way we teach and the way that we love; in helping to build a better society. 

The Diocesan operation has low impact on the natural environment. The administrative headquarters 
endorses recycling consistent with that promoted by the Christchurch City Council. In the main this is 
paper, cardboard, newspapers and publications and staff cafeteria waste. Garden waste is composted. 

Diocesan schools use the natural environment as part of their learning programmes. The following 
contribution from Our Lady of Fatima School, Mairehau, is an excellent example of “hands-on” 
involvement*: 

Our Environment 
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What it means to be an Enviroschool… 
Being an Enviroschool means we are constantly caring and looking 
after our environment. We are all responsible for the school 
environment. As an Enviroschool we are always 
working towards this vision through a whole 
school approach to environmental education. 

 Students are encouraged to reduce waste by 
reusing and recycling; 
 Various bins are available throughout the 

school; 
 Food scraps are used in the worm farms; 
 Garden waste is composted in compost bins 

which is later used in gardens throughout 
the school. 

OUR PEOPLE *Acknowledgement - Staff & Students - Our Lady of Fatima Primary School, Mairehau 

Our Lady of Fatima Care Code... 

1. Respect each other and the environment. 

2. Take responsibility for your rubbish by 
reducing, reusing and recycling. 

3. Turn off all power and water when not in use. 

 Students work together to plan 
projects around the school that 
ensure they achieve their Care Code. 



Being a member of ELF means…. 

Being a member of ELF (Environmental Leaders 
of Fatima) requires responsibility and constant 
care and awareness of the environment. To 
enable the school to achieve the Green Gold 
Award every member of the school needs to be 
involved in ELF. 

The ELF Group is a student based group that 
focuses on the environment and the school 
appeal to newer students and visitors. We started 
a project to improve the garden behind Father 
Paul’s fence because it looked so drab and dead, 
the ground was virtually impossible to plant in. 
We put wet newspaper and compost down, but 
that didn’t look all that nice so we rang up some 
mulching companies and got two trailer loads of 
mulch which we spread, we planted some 
natives and now the garden looks great. Led by 
Jessica (Chairperson), Vy (Secretary) and Glenn 
(Co- Secretary) 

Future ELF Goals... 

We would like to achieve the Green Gold Award 
and also become a sustainable zero-waste 
school. 

Young Vinnies 
This is a student group that is dedicated to 
helping the less fortunate in our community. 
We have a garden that provides vegetables 
for the needy, students care for the garden, 
all the people who are in Young Vinnies are 
year 8. 
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The Student Council 
This is another student group that focuses 
on taking ideas from classes and making 
them into projects to do around the school, 
we have 14 members and each represents a 
junior class that gives their ideas via the 
representative. At the moment the school 
council has a project, the project is to 
transform the sandpit into a retreat area. 
Led by Zac (chairperson) and Vy 
(Secretary). 

Back Row: Joshua Campbell, Rahul George, Vy Nguyen, 
Glenn Jaques, Jessica Nawisielski 

Front Row:  Tessa Donaldson, Brook Johnson, Jessica Costello, 
William Karsten, Laura Burtenshaw, Nick James 

2007 ELF Committee 

Students plan 
gardens throughout 

the school before 
planting. 



Christchurch Catholic Diocesan Development Fund  

Established as a charitable trust in 1967. The purpose of the Fund is to receive deposits from members of 
the Diocesan parish community, corporates, parishes and religious orders for the purpose of investing in 
Catholic development (schools buildings, parish centres, churches etc). The Fund has been very successful 
in building deposits. As at 31st March 2007 depositors’ funds amounted to $31,088,000. 

The Fund operates by paying depositors lower than market interest rates and loaning funds at lower than 
market rates for the purposes previously mentioned. The margin applied between interest paid and interest 
received, together with the margin generated by investing surplus funds at market rates has enabled the 
Trust Board to substantially support, by way of a cash distribution (a dividend), Diocesan operations. The 
distribution in this reporting period amounted to $500,000. 

The Christchurch Catholic Diocesan Development Fund has a reported equity of $1,559,000. As at 31st 
March 2007 the total investment portfolio amounted to $31,897,000. This includes loans for Catholic 
development purposes amounting to $4,347,000. 

The Trust Board members are: 

 George Macfarlane, Chairman, (Trustee) 
 Desmond Boyle (Trustee) 
 Derek Craze (Trustee) 
 Simon Roughan (Trustee) 
 Philip Baird (Trustee) 
 Jack O’Donnell (Trustee) 
 Bishop John Cunneen (Trustee) 
 Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor (Board Member) 

Maryville Courts Trust Board  

Established in 1983 the principal objective of the Maryville Courts Trust Board is 
“to offer an independent lifestyle for those seeking companionship, safety and 
comfort”. 

Located on the corner of Salisbury and Manchester Streets, Christchurch, some 
65 units are available under licence to occupy. 

The village is a retirement village subject to the Securities Act 1978, the Securities Act (Retirement Villages 
Exemptions Notice) 1999 and the Securities Regulations 1983. The village is also regulated by the 
Retirement Villages Act 2003. 

As at the last report period, 30th June 2007, the Trust has reported equity of approximately $6.9m. 

The Bishop is the sole beneficiary of the Trust should it be dissolved. 

Other Agency Reports 

Catholic Diocese of Christchurch 2007 Annual Report 58 

OTHER AGENCY REPORTS 



The current Trustees are; 

 Brian Phillips (Chairman) 
 Paddy Beban 
 John Callaghan 
 Allan Dalton 
 Matthew Glubb 
 George Macfarlane 
 Reverend Bill Middleton 
 Noleen Sheehan 

 

The Christchurch Diocesan Foundation  

The Christchurch Diocesan Foundation is registered under the Charitable Trust Act 1957, and 
administered by a Board of Management. 

The focus of the Trust is to attract legacies or gifts and invest those funds over the long-term to build up 
assets including capital and property, and to use the income generated from those assets to continue and 
develop the pastoral work of the Bishop. 

The Trust has built up equity of $2.4 million. In this reporting period it distributed $75,000 to the 
Bishop for his pastoral work. 

Members of the Foundation’s Board of Management are: 

 D J Boyle (Chairman) 

 P W Leeming (Associate Trustee) 

 B Brankin (Member) 

 Bishop John Cunneen (Trustee) 

 K B Fowke (Trustee) 

 H Duckworth (Trustee) 

 D Langley (Trustee) 

 R D Maskill (Associate Trustee) 

 A F McDonald (Trustee) 

 J Mullis (Member on behalf of the Catholic Women’s League) 

 J M Lawlor (Trustee) 

 J Strassmeyer (Trustee) 

 J A Tasman (Associate Trustee) 

 D J Craze (Secretary) 
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 The Roman Catholic 
Bishop of Christchurch 

The College of 
Consultors 

Building and Sites 
Committee 

The Council 
of Priests 

The Diocesan Management 
and Finance Board 

Investment 
Subcommittee 

Property 
Subcommittee 

The Diocesan 
Education 

Council 

The Diocesan 
Youth Council 
(to be formed) 

The Diocesan 
Welfare 
Council 

Diocesan Governance Structure  

Legal Background 

Canon Law 

The Code of Canon Law provides at: 

Canon 375 § 1: 

“By divine institution, Bishops succeed the Apostles through the Holy Spirit who is given to them. They 
are constituted Pastors in the Church, to be the teachers of doctrine, the priests of sacred worship and 
the ministers of governance.” 

Canon 381 § 1: 

“In the diocese entrusted to his care, the diocesan Bishop has all the ordinary, proper and immediate 
power required for the exercise of his pastoral office, except in those matters which the law or a decree 
of the Supreme Pontiff reserves to the supreme or to some other ecclesiastical authority.” 

Civil Law 

Section 5 of the Roman Catholic Bishops Empowering Act 1997 provides: 

“The Bishop of a diocese is a corporation sole, with perpetual succession and a seal of office, and has and 
may exercise all the rights, powers and privileges, and may incur all liabilities, of a natural person of full 
age and capacity.” 

Underpinning those provisions is Catholic Social Teaching, in particular the important principle of 
“subsidiarity”, as elaborated upon by the Church “a community of a higher order should not interfere in 
the internal life of a community of a lower order, depriving the latter of its functions, but rather should 
support it in case of need and help to co-ordinate its activity with the activities of the rest of society, 
always with a view to the common good.”8 

Within that environment the Bishop exercises his governance responsibilities through advice, consultation 
and consensus. 

The chart illustrates the various Boards, Agencies and Councils that have been established by the Bishop to 
assist him with his governance responsibilities. Of the four areas that have an immediate reporting, 
consultative and accountability relationship, only the Building and Sites Committee is not a direct 
requirement of the Code of Canon Law. 

8 Catechism of the Catholic Church, paragraph 1883 

Governance 
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The Bishop appoints the Management and Finance Board. Its members are generally appointed for a term 
of three years. Its role is explained in the Chairman’s introduction on page 10. 
 
The Bishop appoints the College of Consultors, no fewer than six nor more than twelve, generally for a 
term of five years. The functions of the College are prescribed in the Code of Canon Law. In the main, in 
terms of authority, the College’s role is largely consultative and advisory, although in certain major 
administrative instances, such as approval of the Diocesan budget, the Bishop is required to seek the 
consent of the College before he can act. The College generally meets monthly and on an “as required” 
basis. 
 
The Council of Priests comprises a group of priests, about half elected by the priests of the Diocese, others 
by virtue of office and others appointed by the Bishop. 
 
The Council membership, as at balance date, was: 
 

President Bishop Barry Jones 

Chairman Reverend John Fitzmaurice 

Deputy Chairman Reverend Rick Loughnan 

Regional Reps Reverend Geoff Gray South Canterbury 
 Reverend John Adams West Coast 
 Reverend Paul Duncan Eastern Christchurch 
 Reverend John Morrison Southern Christchurch 
 Reverend John O’Connor North West Christchurch 

Regional Reps Reverend Geoff Gray South Canterbury 
(as elected 27.06.2007) Reverend Chris Orr West Coast 
 Reverend John Fitzmaurice Eastern Christchurch 
 Reverend Peter Ewart SM Southern Christchurch 
 Reverend Dan Doyle North West Christchurch 

Religious Rep Reverend Carl Telford SM 

Appointed Member Reverend John Fitzmaurice        

Ex Officio Reverend Monsignor James Harrington Chancellor 
 Reverend Monsignor Gerard O’Connor Vicar General 
 Reverend Peter Costello 
 Reverend Rick Loughnan 
 Reverend Simon Eccleton 

Secretary Reverend Peter Ewart SM 

Elections are held generally every two or three years. The Council meets at least four times a year and at 
such other times determined by the Bishop. 
 
The Council’s principle role is to assist the Bishop in the governance of the Diocese. It has both an advisory 
and consultative role and a consent role. 
 
The other Sub-Committees or Councils illustrated in the chart are special purpose groups (generally 
reflected in the name of the group) established or approved by the Bishop to report in an advisory capacity 
through the Diocesan Management and Finance Board. These groups generally operate with a formal 
mandate. They meet mostly monthly or as required. 
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The Bishop acknowledges, and is grateful for, the goodwill of his parishes and the wider community 
through their generosity in giving of legacies, grants, trusts and donations. These are an important part of 
the income he receives and help to support and compliment his pastoral mission. 

To those who share in his mission and continue to support the work of his priests, his most sincere thanks. 
  
Donations & Grants 

 Aunt Bettys 
 Blackaby Trust 
 Blogg Charitable Trust 
 K A Boyd Estate 
 The Phillip Brown Fund 
 Burrows Brothers Charitable Trust 
 Maurice Carter Charitable Trust 
 M Carter Estate 
 Catholic Combined Prayer Groups 
 The Community Trust 
 Chapel of the Snows (Antarctica) 
 Child, Youth & Family Department 
 The Christchurch Diocesan Foundation 
 Christchurch Casinos Charitable Trust 
 Christchurch City Council 
 Christian Brothers Trustees 
 J Connor Estate 
 J & M Ferrier Trust 
 Jones Foundation 
 Hawke Estate Trust 
 John Ilott Charitable Trust 
 P Kelly Trust 
 Edith Kennedy Foundation 
 Layburn Hodgins Trust Account 

 Parishes of the Diocese by way of the Parish Allocation. 

 Those regular donors to the work of Catholic Social Services, Catholic Youth Team 
and other Agencies of the Catholic Diocese of Christchurch. 

 The anonymous benefactors to the objectives of the Choral Foundation 
- Cathedral of the Blessed Sacrament 

 Lion Foundation 
 Little Company of Mary 
 Lucas Trust 
 Mary Gray Confectionery 
 Meehan Estate 
 Alex McDonald Merchants Ltd 
 Merivale Fresh Choice 
 Microsoft Foundation 
 M & M Mullin Trust 
 New Zealand Lottery Grants Board 
 Percasky Estate 
 Riccarton Youth Trust 
 Scottwood Group 
 George Sevicke Jones Estate 
 Sisters of the Good Shepherd 
 South City New World 
 Robert & Barbara Stewart Trust 
 Telstra Clear (Line Discounts) 
 Tindall Foundation 
 William Toomey Charitable Trust 
 Twiggers Estate 
 Alfonso & Enid Charitable Weaver Foundation 
 The Wool Lady Trust 

Acknowledgements 
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The Code of Canon Law is very specific about honouring the intentions of donors: 

Can. 1300 “The intentions of the faithful who give or leave goods to pious causes, whether by act inter 
vivos or by an act mortis causa,once lawfully accepted, are to be most carefully observed, even in the 

manner of the administration and the expending of the goods……” 

I certify that the Code of Canon Law, as it applies to the above donations, has been most carefully 
observed. 
 
 
 
+ Barry Jones 
Roman Catholic Bishop of Christchurch 
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Sundry Statistics 

Adult
Year Ending Year Ending Year Ending Year Ending Mass Count

31 March 2004 31 March 2005 31 March 2006 31 March 2007 October 2006

ADDINGTON 59,246 58,172 63,672 67,630 338
AKAROA 8,859 9,878 10,835 11,390 54
ARANUI 9,265 9,188 8,767 8,915 111
ASHBURTON 80,322 76,376 98,731 94,932 266
BECKENHAM 61,489 63,463 72,448 73,761 224
BISHOPDALE 56,527 53,110 - - -
  (Now incorporated into Papanui Parish)

BRYNDWR 65,424 77,479 77,273 80,536 226
BURNSIDE 152,659 151,659 151,483 194,083 728
BURWOOD  Holy Family 40,653 42,783 43,502 45,576 198
CATHEDRAL 80,838 98,009 99,086 91,052 609
CHATHAM ISLANDS 3,800 840 6
CHCH NORTH ST MARYS 92,314 76,767 77,149 82,049 373
CHCH PUBLIC HOSPITAL - - - - 60
CHEVIOT 16,570 14,875 14,578 12,346 58
DALLINGTON 79,121 80,353 79,071 79,033 321
DARFIELD 12,172 12,371 12,801 12,515 50
FAIRLIE 18,606 16,241 16,004 16,505 49
GERALDINE 14,328 15,007 15,345 16,811 73
GREY VALLEY / NGAHERE  8,872 8,089 7,868 11,729 25
GREYMOUTH 90,281 84,635 82,846 80,016 207
HALSWELL 32,447 31,966 35,527 37,157 208
HANMER        1,581 1,745 2,083 2,193 41
HAWARDEN 8,553 8,703 8,255 8,109 31
HOKITIKA 32,992 36,963 36,769 36,468 118
HOLY CROSS CHAPEL 7,279 8,653 7,762 10,396
HOON HAY 58,727 48,398 48,127 48,136 133
HORNBY 37,070 37,001 41,776 44,634 194
KAIAPOI 35,901 34,567 34,344 38,387 174
KOREANS 49,884 49,584 43,418 52,535 205
KUMARA 3,295 3,467 2,940 3,054 11
LEESTON 10,256 11,235 16,788 13,900 50
LINCOLN 23,204 32,815 33,675 35,193 118
LYTTELTON 12,921 13,530 14,149 14,786 45
MAIREHAU 59,278 66,388 71,870 70,768 303
METHVEN 12,769 14,555 13,310 16,519 56
NAZARETH HOUSE - - - - 88
NEW BRIGHTON 17,012 15,616 18,690 19,903 90
PAPANUI (Including Bishopdale) 132,139 131,951 185,456 194,736 717
PLEASANT POINT 16,685 16,841 16,305 15,021 55
PRINCESS MARGARET HOSPITAL - - - - 70
RAKAIA 6,446 7,328 6,344 6,902 27
RANGIORA 65,905 73,708 80,729 83,707 302
RICCARTON 108,848 108,312 106,951 118,923 456
RUNANGA/COBDEN 9,377 8,535 8,813 9,849 37
SOCKBURN 125,077 131,482 137,952 129,064 651
SOUTH WESTLAND 13,685 14,850 12,809 13,255 43
ST ALBANS  37,553 40,245 40,384 42,535 128
SUMNER 29,168 46,381 54,066 58,383 116
TE RANGIMARIE - - - - 55
TEMUKA 35,267 37,242 38,391 38,420 155
TERTIARY CHAPLAINCY - - - - 48
TIMARU NORTH 78,517 81,323 79,772 78,736 363
TIMARU SOUTH 89,461 88,141 86,669 85,642 303
TINWALD 15,214 14,687 15,446 15,636 78
TWIZEL  6,436 6,692 6,020 6,874 25
WAIMATE 25,069 25,069 23,963 23,379 113
WOOLSTON 50,416 48,752 45,694 41,817 237

2,199,776 2,246,020 2,306,706 2,393,897 9,820

Parish Second Collection Returns
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NOTES 

Notes 



2008 will be a year like no other 
for the Diocese of Christchurch 

as it prepares for, and reaps the benefits of, 
World Youth Day. 




